
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina / Tom Williams


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2012-07 pertaining to the "Fayette County 2011 Annual Report on Fire Services 


Impact Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work 


Program (FY2012 - FY2016)", and authorization to transmit said document to the Atlanta Regional Commission. 


Fayette County and the towns of Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, in accordance with the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the 


Minimum Planning Standards, have prepared the "Fayette County 2011 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2011), including 


the Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Program (FY2012 - FY2016)". 


 


This annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum 


Planning Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989. 


 


 


Approval of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2012-07 pertaining to the "Fayette County 2011 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact 


Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program 


(FY2012 - FY2016), and authorization to transmit said document to the Atlanta Regional Commission for coordination of Regional and 


State review prior to adoption.


Not Applicable


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, March 22, 2012







FAYETTE COUNTY 
STATE OF GEORGIA 


 
RESOLUTION NO.  2012-07 


 
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE “FAYETTE COUNTY 2011 ANNUAL REPORT 
ON FIRE SERVICES IMPACT FEES (FY2011), INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR UPDATES TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
ELEMENT AND SHORT-TERM WORK PROGRAM (FY2012 – FY2016)”; AND TO 
AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL OF SAID DOCUMENT TO THE ATLANTA REGIONAL 
COMMISSION FOR COORDINATION OF REGIONAL AND STATE REVIEW PRIOR 
TO ADOPTION. 


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County has prepared the “Fayette County 2011 Annual Report On Fire 


Services Impact Fees (FY2011), Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments For Updates to the 
Capital Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2012–FY2016),” a collaborative 
report including the towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey; and 
 


WHEREAS, the annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the Georgia 
Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures for Local 
Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989; and 
 


WHEREAS, on the 22nd of March, 2012, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
conducted a public hearing on the 2011 Fire Services Impact Fee Report and proposed Comprehensive 
Plan amendments.  
 


BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of Commissioners does 
hereby approve the “Fayette County 2011 Annual Report On Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2011) 
Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments For Updates To The Capital Improvements Element and 
the Short-Term Work Program (FY2012 – FY2016);” and approves transmittal to the Atlanta Regional 
Commission for coordination of regional and state review, prior to adoption, as per the requirements of 
the Georgia Planning Act of 1989 and the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act. 
                     


SO RESOLVED this 22nd day of March, 2012. 
       


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA  
 


_______________________________________ 
     Herbert Frady, Chairman 
     Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 













































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Annual Report Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Annual Report Backup

		Microsoft Word - Resolution 2012-07.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Annual Report Backup

		Microsoft Word - Resolution 2012-06.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Annual Report Backup














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-01 approving proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances, Chapter 8. Development Regulations, by amending Article II.  Nonresidential Construction Permit and Compliance 


Procedures.


The proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 8. Development Regulations, Article II.  Nonresidential 


Construction Permit and Compliance Procedures are in conjunction with the adopted amendments to the Fayette County Subdivision 


Regulations and changing the regulation administrating department to the Stormwater Management Department from the Engineering 


Department.  At the Board of Commissioners Public Hearing/Workshop held on March 8, 2012, staff was instructed to place the proposed 


amendments on the Board of Commissioners' March 22, 2012 Agenda.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-01 approving proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances, Chapter 8. Development Regulations, by amending Article II.  Nonresidential Construction Permit and Compliance 


Procedures.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes Thursday, March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







 1


STATE OF GEORGIA;  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


ORDINANCE NO. 2012-01 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, 


AS AMENDED SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE II NONRESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION 


PERMIT AND COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES; TO UPDATE COMPLIANCE 


PROCEDURES FOR NONRESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION; TO PROVIDE FOR 


CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; 


TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 


PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 


WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


ethical standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


  


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1.  That Article II of Chapter 8 Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette 


County, Georgia is hereby amended to read as follows: 


 


ARTICLE II:  NONRESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT AND COMPLIANCE 


PROCEDURES 


 


Section 8-26. General.  


 


Use and structures.  Property shall not be used and structures shall not be constructed or modified 


unless it is shown that a proposed use or storage is in compliance with all county regulations as 


verified by a Certificate of Zoning Compliance. 


 


(a) Building Permit.  Before issuing any type of building permit for the site, the Building 


Official must receive a Certificate of Zoning Compliance approved by the Zoning 


Administrator.  


 


(b) Site Plan Required.  Prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance by the 


Zoning Administrator, a site plan must be approved for any new nonresidential structure 


(including additions), use, and/or a change or expansion of a use.  Exemption of the 


requirement for a site plan approval for a new non-essential storage structure or a minor 


addition to an existing structure shall be granted by the Zoning Administrator upon 


determination that it does not affect septic, stormwater, parking, circulation and/or lot 


coverage requirements.  Exemption of the requirement for a site plan approval for a change 


or expansion of a use shall be granted by the Zoning Administrator upon determination of 







 2


compliance with all of the following criteria: (Ordinance No. 1999-08, Ordinance No. 2001-


06) 


 


(i) New structures, additions, and/or expansions are not proposed for the new use, except 


as otherwise provided herein. 


 


(ii) The proposed use is a permitted use in the zoning district (conditional uses not 


exempt.) 


 


(iii) The proposed use is a similar or less intensive use than the last authorized use of the 


property. 


 


(iv) Thresholds for water use, septic systems, etc. are similar or less intensive than the last 


authorized use of the property. 


 


(v) The site complies with the minimum parking requirements for the proposed use and 


all other existing uses on site.  


 


(vi) The site is in compliance with all conditions of approval, and site standard in effect at 


the time the pervious use was authorized. 


 


  Exemption from the site plan approval process for a change of use does not also exempt the 


requirement for all other necessary permits and inspections.  (Ordinance No. 2001-06) 


 


Section 8-27. Site Plans 


 


(a)    Filing of Site Plan.  The Site Plan shall be submitted in accordance with the schedule of 


established application deadlines and meeting dates, a copy of which is available in the 


Planning and Zoning Department.  The site plan shall be deemed filed when it has been 


submitted to the Zoning Administrator. (Ordinance No. 1999-08) 


 


(b) Site Plan Distribution.  Fifteen copies of a 24” by 36” site plan shall be submitted to the 


Planning and Zoning Department for distribution and review by the applicable departments. 


(Ordinance No. 1999-08, Ordinance No. 2001-06) 


 


(c)    Site Plan Contents.  The site plan shall: 


 


(i) be prepared by an engineer of architect registered in the State of Georgia; 


 


(ii) include a recorded signed and sealed survey indicating metes and bounds; and 


 


(iii) all applicable information as required on the site plan review checklist, a copy of 


which is available at the Planning and Zoning Department. (Ordinance No. 1999-08) 


 


(d) Department Approval.  Upon completion of site plan review by the required departments,            


each department will return its comments to the Planning and Zoning Department, who will 


make the appropriate entries on the site plan review checklist and notify applicant of 


approval, administrative conditions of approval, or additional requirements. (Ordinance 


1999-08) 


 







 3


(e) Fee.  A site plan review and compliance fee as specified in this code will be collected and a 


receipt provided at the time of issuance of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance by the 


Zoning Administrator and prior to the issuance of a building permit.  (Ordinance 1999-08) 


 


(f) Other Plans Required.  The following plans if applicable shall be submitted at the time of site 


plan submittal and shall be approved prior to site plan approval:  (Ordinance 1999-08, 


Ordinance 2001-06) 


 


(i) Floodplain Management Plan.  Reference Article IV of the Development Regulations 


for applicability and plan requirements. (two [2] sets) 


 


(ii) Landscape Plan.  Reference Article V of the Development Regulations for 


applicability and plan requirements. (two [2] sets) 


 


(iii) Tree Protection Plan.  Reference Article VI of the Development Regulations for 


applicability and plan requirements. (two [2] sets) 


 


(iv) Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan.  Reference Article IX of the 


Development Regulations for applicability and plan requirements.  (three [3] sets) 


 


(v) Grading Plan.  Required only when a land disturbance permit is not applicable. (two 


[2] sets) 


 


(1) Clearing, grubbing or grading shall not be undertaken until a land disturbance 


permit has been approved by the Stormwater Management Department.  If a land 


disturbance permit is not required, a grading plan shall be approved prior to any 


clearing, grubbing, or grading. 


  


(2) No clearing, grubbing or grading involving the use of explosive may be 


undertaken until a permit has been issued by the Fire Marshal. 


 


(3) No installation or removal of underground tanks for Class I, II, III flammable 


liquids shall be undertaken until appropriate permits and inspections have been 


conducted by the Fire Marshal. 


 


(vi) Water plan if required by the Water System (two[2] sets) 


 


(g) Verification of Lot.  In addition to an approved site plan, an applicant must provide 


verification that a plat of subdivision has been approved and recorded if required by the 


Subdivision Regulations. 


 


(h) Approval by Zoning Administrator.  Upon approval of the site plan by all the applicable 


departments, the Zoning Administrator may approve the Certificate of Zoning Compliance. 


 


(i) Certification of Building Official and Fire Marshal.  The applicant will be notified by the 


Zoning Administrator’s issuance of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance \that the site plan 


has been approved.  A copy of the Certificate of Zoning Compliance will be presented to the 


Building Official and Fire Marshal.  (Ordinance No. 1999-08) 


 


(j) Building Construction Plans.  Two (2) sets of building construction plans including one (1) 


set in electronic media format known as a PDF (portable document file) format on a CD/RW 







 4


shall be submitted to the Fire Marshal for review and approval by both the Fire Marshal and 


Building Official.  Construction plans shall not be submitted to the Fire Marshal prior to the 


site plan approval process. (Ordinance No. 2001-06) 


 


Building construction plan documents should include: 


 


(i) One (1) PDF file on CD/RW with project manual PDF (complete set of construction 


drawings including site plans).  Architect/engineer signed/sealed stamp required.  


 


(ii) Two (2) complete sets of architectural construction drawings with appropriate 


architect/engineer signed/sealed stamp.  Architectural drawings – floor plan(s); 


elevation(s); mechanical plan(s); plumbing plan(s); fire protection plan(s) – fire 


extinguishers; alarm; smoke/heat detection; sprinkler plans.  Construction type by 


International Building Code and building square footage should be noted. 


 


In addition to the Fire Marshal’s requirements, the Permits and Inspection Department 


requirements shall include, but not limited to the following: 


 


(iii) COMcheck; use and occupancy classification; occupant load; electrical panels and 


panel schedules; ARC Fault Current calculations and interrupt ratings for equipment; 


electrical load calculations; structural load package(s); engineered trust/joist 


package(s); framing details; statement of special inspections; footing/foundation 


specifications; gas line isometric details; ventilation, outside air, and make-up air 


schedules; specific hazardous area details; energy code details/specifications. 


 


(iv) Check with the Permits and Inspections Department for specific details/requirements 


for the project. 


 


(v) If applicable: two (2) sets of project manuals with specifications. 


 


(k) Site Plan Changes.  Any deviations from an approved site plan must be shown on a revised 


site plan and approved by the applicable departments.  Changes shall be authorized in writing 


on the revised site plan by the applicable departments.  A copy of the revised site plan will 


then be given to the Building Official for inclusion in the project file. (Ordinance No. 1999-


06) 


 


(l) Fire Marshal Approval.  The Fire Marshal shall approve all construction plans and submit to 


the Building Official a written report of compliance with the County Fire Prevention Code.  


Prior to any building construction, the applicant must obtain a construction permit through 


the Bureau of Fire Prevention.  This permit will not be in lieu of required permits through the 


Building Official.  (Ordinance No. 1999-08) 


 


(m) Certificate of Occupancy.  In no case shall a Certificate of Occupancy be issued by the 


Building Official unless an as-built condition is reflected on an approved site plan. 


(Ordinance No. 1986-13§ 2-1, 7-24-86; Ord. Of 3-24-88) 


 


(n) Expiration of Certificate of Zoning Compliance.  If no application is made to obtain a 


building permit from the Building Official within 12 months of the date of zoning 


compliance, then said compliance shall be deemed null and void.  (Ordinance NO. 1997-08, 


4-24-97, Ordinance No. 1999-08) 


 







 5


Section 8-27. Compliance 


 


(a) Batter Board and Footing Inspection.  A batter board inspection shall be required in addition 


to the footing inspection required by the Standard Building Code.  A batter board inspection 


shall be required by the Planning and Zoning Department and the Stormwater Management 


Department who shall be notified by the Building Official whenever a batter board inspection 


is requested.  The Planning and Zoning Department and the Stormwater Management 


Department shall inspect the project and/or require a surveyor’s certification.  The Planning 


and Zoning Department and Stormwater Management Department shall certify in writing to 


the Building Official that the building location and other and other aspects of the site comply 


with the approved site plan prior to a footing inspection by the Building Official. 


 


(b) Final and 80 Percent Inspections.  The Building Official shall notify the Planning and Zoning 


Department and the Stormwater Management Department, and the Fire Marshal whenever a 


final inspection is requested.  The Planning and Zoning Department, the Stormwater 


Management Department, and the Fire Marshal shall inspect the project and shall certify in 


writing to the Building Official that the site is in compliance, or that proper surety, as 


provided for in various county ordinances, has been posted.  The Building Official shall not 


allow a structure to be occupied nor issue a Certificate of Occupancy prior to receiving 


certification of approval in writing from the above named county employees.  The Fire 


Marshal shall be notified directly by the owner or contractor whenever an 80 percent 


inspection is due. 


Cross references - Buildings, Ch. 5; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 9 


 


(c) Fire Marshal Inspections.  In addition to requesting an 80 percent inspection directly 


from the Bureau of Fire Prevention, an applicant shall notify the Bureau of Fire 


Prevention for other scheduled inspections.  The Fire Marshal shall report in writing to 


the Building Official any deficiencies noted during the inspections.  Certificates of fire 


safety compliance issued by the Fires Marshal shall not grant authority to occupy a 


building until the appropriate certificates have been issued by the Building Official.  


 


Section  8-28 - 8-45.  Reserved. 
 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 


paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed 


by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 


severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is 


hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent 


upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 







 6


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining 


phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall 


remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 


hereby expressly repealed. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


So ordained this 22nd day of March, 2012. 


 


  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 


 


     


________________________________ 


      HERBERT FRADY, CHAIRMAN 
 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


______________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-01 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2012-01 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt policies and procedures for purchases that use federal grant funds.


When the county accepts federal grant funds, it must abide by all federal laws, rules, and regulations that pertain to the grant.  Federal 


agencies have jointly issued requirements called the "grants management common rule."  The rule contains, among other things, 


stipulations for procurements using grant funds.  The rule covers such areas as economical use of the funds, maintenance of records, full 


and open competition, and other procurement issues.  The rule also requires a written policy whereby vendors can protest the outcome of 


invitations to bid or requests for proposals. 


 


The two attached draft policies are recommended to address the requirements included in the grants management common rule.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt policies and procedures for purchases that use federal grant funds.


No funding is required.  Approval of this action will allow the county to accept federal grants.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-
 


Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  March 7, 2012 
 
Subject: Purchasing Procedures for Federal Compliance 
 
 
When the county accepts a federal grant, it must agree to abide by all federal rules and 
regulations associated with the grant. 
 
Federal agencies that make grants to state and local governments were directed to adopt 
government-wide terms and conditions for use of the grants.  This led to issuance of the “grants 
management common rule.”  The purpose of the rule was to establish consistency and uniformity 
among federal agencies in the management of grants. 
 
Among other things, the common rule requires the county to adopt procedures governing specific 
aspects of the procurement process.  Two of the requirements are as follows: 


 
1. Procurement Procedures: The common rule requires grantees to have written 


procurement procedures.  It enumerates specific stipulations that must be included in the 
procedures.  Attachment 1 sets forth proposed policy and procedures that would be used 
when spending federal funds, in compliance with the grants management common rule. 


 
2. Vendor protests: The common rule requires local governments that spend grant funds to 


have written protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to their 
procurements.  Attachment 2 provides a procedure whereby a vendor can protest the 
specifications by which an invitation to bid or request for proposals will be evaluated, the 
way bids or proposals were evaluated, or the award of a contract.  It should be noted that 
these procedures would apply to any invitation to bid or request for proposals, whether 
using federal grant funds or county funds. 


 
 
Attachments (2) 







 


Attachment 1 
 


March 7, 2012 
 


Fayette County, Georgia 
Compliance With The Federal Common Rule 


For Use Of Federal Funds 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Grants of funds from the federal government, whether received directly from the federal 
government or through a state agency, require the county to follow laws, rules, and 
regulations governing the use of the funds.  The procedures enumerated below are in 
compliance with requirements contained in the federal grants management common rule. 
 
 
POLICY 
 
The Purchasing Department will follow consistent purchasing procedures to assure the 
appropriate and prudent use of federal funds that are made available to the county for 
public purposes. 
 
Note: Some procurement requirements may vary from one grant to another.  For this 
reason, it is important for any department receiving a grant award to furnish a copy to 
the Purchasing Department.  Purchasing staff will review the grant award and relevant 
documents pertinent to any invitation for bids (IFB), request for proposals (RFP), or other 
procurement actions which would use grant funds, comply with purchasing-related 
requirements, and maintain the documents in the purchasing files.  Construction projects 
carry additional requirements, which should be reviewed carefully before contracts or 
purchases are executed. 
 
 
I. PROCEDURES – PROCUREMENTS WITH FEDERAL FUNDS 
 
A. The federal Common Rule requires the county to follow specific purchasing rules 
when spending federal grant funds.  The Common Rule stipulates that local 
governments “will use their own procurement procedures which reflect applicable State 
and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable 
Federal law and the standards identified in this section.” 
 
 
The standards to be met by the grant-receiving department are: 
 


1. Maintain a contract administration system which ensures that contractors perform 
in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of contracts or 
purchase orders. 


 
2. Conduct a review of proposed procurements to avoid purchase of unnecessary 


or duplicative items.  When appropriate, analyze lease-versus-purchase 


                    3/7/2012  6:52:32 PM                                  Page 1                                            P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Fed Grants.doc 







 


alternatives or conduct other appropriate analyses to determine the most 
economical approach.  Consider consolidating or breaking out purchases to 
reduce total costs. 


 
3. Perform a cost analysis or price analysis in connection with every procurement 


action.  For procurements which involve an IFB or RFP, an estimate must be 
made before receiving the bids or proposals. 


 
a. A price analysis will be appropriate for most contract procurements, in 


order to determine the reasonableness of a proposed contract price.  This 
may involve a review of past similar contract prices, other local 
government experience, directly contacting a trade group, or other 
appropriate mechanisms. 


 
b. A cost analysis may be appropriate in some cases when offerors are 


required to submit a breakdown of estimated costs as part of a bid or 
proposal.  Based on experience, this will be an unusual occurrence for 
the county, and may be necessary when adequate price competition is 
lacking, for certain sole-source procurements, or similar situations.  The 
county will negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each 
contract in which there is no price competition, and in all cases where a 
cost analysis is performed. 


 
 


The standards to be met by the Purchasing Department are: 
 


4. The county will make awards only to responsible contractors that possess the 
ability to perform successfully under the terms of a proposed procurement.  
Consideration will be given to contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, 
record of past performance, and financial and technical resources, as appropriate. 


 
5. All contracts awarded by the county, and using federal funds covered by these 


instructions, must contain the following provisions: 
 


a. Notice of any reporting required by the grant-awarding agency. 
b. Assurance of access by the federal grantor agency, the state, the county, 


the Comptroller General of the United States, or any duly authorized 
representative of these agencies to any books, documents, papers, or 
records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to the contract for 
the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions. 


c. All required records will be retained by the contractor for three years after 
grantees or subgrantees make final payments and all  other pending 
matters are closed. 


 
6. The county will maintain records of the significant history of a procurement.  In 


addition to information routinely kept, procurement folders will document: 
 


a. Rationale for the method of procurement (e.g. open-market purchase, IFB, 
or RFP); 


b. Rationale for selection of contract type, (e.g. sole source contract, cost 
reimbursement contract, or fixed price contract); 


                    3/7/2012  6:52:32 PM                                  Page 2                                            P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Fed Grants.doc 







 


c. Rationale for contractor selection or rejection; and 
d. Basis for the contract price. 


 
7. The county will use time-and-material type contracts (where the county is 


charged for direct labor hours and materials costs) only: 
a. After a determination that no other contract is suitable, and 
b. If the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its 


own risk. 
 


8. The county will be responsible for settlement of contractual and administrative 
issues arising out of procurements.  These issues include, but are not limited to, 
source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. 


 
9. Procurement transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full and open 


competition.  Examples of situations considered to be restrictive of competition 
include, but are not limited to: 


a. placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to 
do business, 


b. requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding, 
c. non-competitive pricing practices between firms or affiliated companies, 
d. non-competitive awards to consultants that are on retainer contracts, 
e. organizational conflicts of interest 
f. specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an equal” 


product to be offered and describing the performance of other relevant 
requirements of the procurement, or 


g. any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 
 


10. The Purchasing Department will make contact with enough qualified vendors to 
provide for open and free competition.  Potential bidders will not be precluded 
from qualifying during the solicitation period. 


 
11. Contracts over $10,000 must contain a provision for potential termination of the 


contract for cause, or for convenience by the grantee or the county, including the 
manner by which termination will be effected and the basis for settlement. 
 


 
In addition, the following standards will be met: 
 


12. The county will maintain a written code of standards of conduct governing the 
performance of employees, including those engaged in the award and 
administration of contracts. 


 
13. The county will maintain procedures for vendor protests to resolve procurement-


related disputes.  In all instances, the county will disclose protests to the grant-
awarding agency. 


 
14. The county will abide by all other requirements and standards stipulated in the 


federal Common Rule for the granting federal agency. 
 
 
 


                    3/7/2012  6:52:32 PM                                  Page 3                                            P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Fed Grants.doc 







 


 
II. PROCEDURES – VENDOR SELECTION 
 


A. Purchases shall be made in conformance with county ordinances, including 
Article V, Purchases; Sales and county policies and procedures, such as policy 
#300.11, titled Grants Management.  The director of purchasing has the authority 
to make purchases on the open market where the purchase price does not 
exceed the amount authorized in the ordinance.  Other purchases can be made 
only with prior approval by the Board of Commissioners on a competitive sealed 
basis. 


 
B. Competitive sealed procurement methods may include Invitations for Bids (IFB) 


or Requests for Proposals (RFP).  Adequate public notice of an IFB or RFP shall 
be given prior to the bid opening date. 


 
1. Invitation for Bids: Bids shall be opened publicly in the presence of one 


or more witnesses at the time and place designated in the IFB.  The 
name of the bidder, the amount bid, and other information deemed 
relevant shall be recorded.  The record and each bid shall be open to 
public inspection. 


 
Bids shall be evaluated based on the requirements set forth in the IFB.  
This may include criteria to determine acceptability such as inspection, 
testing quality, workmanship, delivery, and suitability for a particular 
purpose.  Those criteria that will affect the bid price and be considered in 
evaluation for award shall be objectively measurable, such as discounts, 
transportation costs, and total or life cycle costs.  The IFB shall set forth 
the evaluation criteria to be used.  No criteria may be used in bid 
evaluations that are not set forth in the IFB. 


 
Corrections to, or withdrawal of, inadvertently erroneous bids may be 
done before an award is made.  After bid opening, no changes in bid 
prices or other provisions of bids prejudicial to the interest of the county or 
fair competition shall be permitted.  Any decision to permit the correction 
or withdrawal of a bid, or to cancel an award or contract based on bid 
mistakes, shall be supported by a written determination made by the 
director of purchasing and placed in the IFB file. 
 
The contract shall be awarded with reasonable promptness by written 
notice to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets 
the requirements and criteria set forth in the IFB. 


 
2. Request for Proposals: Adequate public notice shall be given prior to 


the opening date of an RFP.  Proposals shall be opened so as to avoid 
disclosure of contents to competing offers during the process of 
negotiation.  A Register of Proposals shall be prepared, and shall be open 
for public inspection after contract award. 


 
The RFP shall state any and all factors to be used in evaluation of the 
proposals. 
 


                    3/7/2012  6:52:32 PM                                  Page 4                                            P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Fed Grants.doc 







 


As provided in the RFP, discussions may be conducted with responsible 
offerors, for the purpose of clarification to assure full understanding of, 
and responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements.  Revisions of 
proposals may be permitted after submission and prior to award for the 
purpose of obtaining best and final offers.  In conducting discussions, 
there shall be no disclosure of any information derived from proposals 
submitted by competing offerors. 
 
Award shall be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal conforms 
to the solicitation and is determined to be the most advantageous to the 
county, taking into consideration the evaluation factors set forth in the 
RFP. 


 
C. Purchases other than competitive sealed procurement may be made using the 


following methods. 
 


1. Small purchases are those not exceeding the authority granted to the 
director of purchasing by county ordinance.  Purchases in this group may 
be made without sealed competition. Price or rate quotations shall be 
obtained from an adequate number of qualified sources to assure good 
value for the county, while promoting free and open competition among 
vendors.  Procurement transactions shall not be artificially divided so as 
to constitute a small purchase. 


 
2. Sole source procurements may be made when the director of the 


requesting department determines in writing that there is only one source 
for the required supply, service or other item. 


 
3. Emergency procurements may be made in some situations, such as 


those stipulated in Article V of county policies and procedures, or An  
Ordinance Authorizing the Suspension of Portions of the Code of 
Ordinances and Other Formalities During a State of Emergency.  The 
director of the requesting department shall provide a written determination 
of the basis for the emergency to the Purchasing Department, which shall 
be included in the contract or procurement file. 


 
D. An IFB, RFP, or other solicitation may be cancelled, or any or all bids or 


proposals may be rejected in whole or in part as may be specified in the 
solicitation, when it is in the best interest of the county.  A sound reason for 
taking this action will be documented and placed in the procurement file. 


 
E. All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical 


requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured.  The description 
shall not unduly restrict competition.  The description may include a statement of 
the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service to be procured, and may 
set forth the minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must 
conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. 


 
A “brand name or equal” description may be used as a means to define the 
performance or other requirements of a procurement.  The specific features of 
the named brand which must be met by offerors shall be clearly stated. 


                    3/7/2012  6:52:32 PM                                  Page 5                                            P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Fed Grants.doc 







 


                    3/7/2012  6:52:32 PM                                  Page 6                                            P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Fed Grants.doc 


 
All solicitations shall identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill, and 
all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. 


 
F. The county will use minority-owned businesses, small businesses, and women’s 


business enterprises when practicable.  To accomplish this, the Purchasing 
Department will: 


1. Place qualified businesses in these groups on the bidders list when they 
express an interest. 


2. Assure that these businesses are solicited whenever they are potential 
vendors. 


3. Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks 
or quantities to permit maximum participation by these businesses. 


4. Establish delivery schedules, where requirements permit, which 
encourage participation by these businesses. 


5. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, 
and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce. 


6. Require any prime contractor(s) to take the steps listed in 1-5 above. 
 


The county will use the following definitions, in conformance with the Georgia 
Department of Administrative Services: 


 Minority-owned business: A business owned or controlled at least 51% 
by person(s) who are African American, Native American, Asian 
American, Hispanic/Latino, or Pacific Islander. 


 Small business: An independently owned and operated entity that has 
either (1) fewer than 100 employees or (2) less than $1 million in gross 
receipts per year, as defined by O.C.G.A 50-5-121. 


 Women’s business enterprise: A business that is owned or controlled at 
least 51% by one or more women. 


 







 


Attachment 2 
 


March 7, 2012 
 


Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Procedures Governing Protests 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
In the event that a bidder, offeror, or contractor wishes to protest a solicitation, offer, or 
award of a contract, a protest can be effected by following the procedures below.  The 
purpose of these procedures is to provide a mechanism to resolve conflicts of this nature 
in a way that is equitable, to the extent possible, to all concerned parties. 
 
 
POLICY 
 
It is the policy of the county to procure goods and services in a way that promotes the 
financial and other interests of citizens, while maintaining equity and fairness in its 
dealings with the business community.  In the event that a protest should arise, the 
county’s response must reflect a resolution that abides by all federal and state laws and 
county ordinances; provides equity to involved bidders, offerors, or contractors to the 
extent possible; and provides the goods or services needed to conduct county business. 
 
 
PROCEDURES 
 
An actual or prospective bidder, offeror, or contractor may protest a solicitation, offer, or 
contract award made by the county’s Purchasing Department. 
 
The protestor must present such protest in writing to the Director of Purchasing.  A 
written protest may be presented in person, through traditional mail, or electronically.  It 
must include the following information: 
 


 Name and address of the protestor 
 Identification of the procurement action being protested 
 A statement of the reason for the protest. 


 
Protests will be considered for the following three types of procurement actions: 
 


1. Protest regarding solicitation: A written protest regarding solicitation must be 
received by the Purchasing Department no later than three (3) calendar days 
prior to the deadline to submit offers.  Protests of this type may include claims of 
exclusionary or discriminatory specifications in the solicitation; challenges to the 
basis for award; claims that the procurement process violates a federal law, state 
law, or county ordinance or policy; or similar claims. 


 


                    3/7/2012  6:55:31 PM                                                                                          P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Protests.doc 







 


                    3/7/2012  6:55:31 PM                                                                                          P:\Ted B\Policy\Fed Grants\Protests.doc 


Upon receipt of a timely solicitation protest, the Purchasing Department may 
postpone the deadline for submission of offers until resolution of the protest, if 
the needs of the county permit. 


 
2. Protest regarding offer evaluation: A written protest concerning the evaluation 


of a bid or offer must be received by the Purchasing Department no later than 
five (5) calendar days after the county’s award decision is made.  This type of 
protest may challenge the county’s determination of responsiveness of offers or 
errors in evaluation calculations, or may claim that the county violated a federal, 
law, state law, or county ordinance or policy in awarding the contract. 


 
Upon receipt of a timely protest regarding the evaluation of offers, the county 
may suspend its evaluation of offers until resolution of the protest, if the needs of 
the county permit. 


 
3. Protest regarding award of contract: A written protest regarding a contract 


award must be received by the Purchasing Department no later than five (5) 
calendar days after award of the contract.  After that time, the protest will not be 
deemed a valid protest, but may still be considered if deemed appropriate by the 
county.  This type of protest will be considered only if the protestor demonstrates 
that the county violated a federal law, state law, or county ordinance or policy. 


 
Upon receipt of a timely protest of contract award, the county may suspend the 
contract until resolution of the protest, if the needs of the county permit. 


 
The Director of Purchasing will notify any protestor of receipt of a timely protest and may, 
where appropriate, request additional information.  The county may, at its sole discretion, 
meet with the protestor to review the issues raised in the protest. 
 
After review of a protest, the Director of Purchasing will issue a written decision on the 
basis of the information provided by the protestor, the result of any meetings with the 
protestor, and the county’s investigation of the facts.  The decision shall be final.  The 
written decision will include the reasons for the decision made, and any actions taken.  A 
copy of the decision shall be provided to the protestor and any other intervening party. 
 
Decisions will be made, and the protestor and other intervening parties will be notified of 
the decisions, within 14 calendar days of receipt of a written protest.  If a final decision 
has not been made within that time frame, the protest will be considered denied by 
default. 
 
If the protest is upheld, the county will take appropriate action to correct the procurement 
including, but not limited to, re-issuance of the solicitation, revised evaluation of the 
offers or the county’s conclusion of the evaluations, or termination of the contract.  If the 
protest is denied, the county will remove suspension and proceed with the procurement. 
 
In the event that a contract is terminated, the county will compensate the vendor or 
contractor for any authorized performance under the contract up to the date of 
termination.  The vendor or contractor will not be entitled to damages or payment for 
work not done on the contract at the time of termination.  The county will not 
compensate a vendor or contractor for any profits that would have been realized if the 
purchase order or contract had not been terminated. 





		Purchasing- Common Rule Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Common Rule Backup

		Purchasing - Common Rule Backup 1.pdf

		Purchasing - Common Rule Backup 2

		Purchasing - Common Rule Backup 3








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Gasoline Vendor Budgeting Category for the Criminal Investigations Division by 
$950.00 for reimbursement received from the US Marshals Service for gasoline expenditures incurred for the vehicle which was 
purchased for Fayette County.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division has received monies for reimbursement of Gasoline expenditures 
incurred for the vehicle purchased by the US Marshals Service for Fayette County.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Gasoline Vendor Budgeting Category for the Criminal Investigations Division by 
$950.00 for reimbursement received from the US Marshals Service for gasoline expenditures incurred for the vehicle which was 
purchased for Fayette County.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $11,783.60 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office' request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $11,783.60 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


N/A


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-03, approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article X, Dam and Impoundment Design Specifications and Permit Requirements.


Proposed amendments to Chapter 8, Fayette County Development Regulations Article X, Dam Impoundment Design Specifications and 


Permit Requirements include changing the administrating department to Stormwater Management form Engineering, rearranging content 


adding definitions to simplify use and understanding, and clarifying design specifications and the submission process. At the Board of 


Commissioners Public Hearing/Workshop held March 8, 2012, staff was instructed to place the proposed amendments on the Board of 


Commissioners' March 22, 2012 Agenda.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-03, approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article X, Dam and Impoundment Design Specifications and Permit Requirements.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







 1


Section 8-301. STATE OF GEORGIA;  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


ORDINANCE NO. 2012-03 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 


REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE X DAMS AND 


IMPOUNDMENTS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE INVENTORY, CLASSIFICATION, 


INSPECTION AND PERMITTING OF CERTAIN DAMS; TO PROVIDE FOR 


CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR 


PENALTIES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN 


ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 


PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


ethical standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; and,  


 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia, shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


  


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1.  That Article X of Chapter 8 Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette 


County, Georgia is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced to read as follows: 


 


ARTICLE X:  DAM AND ARTIFICIAL BARRIER DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS AND 


PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 


(First adopted April 4, 1996) 


 


Section 8-301. Purpose.  The purpose of this Article is to establish design specifications and permit 


requirements of dams and impoundments in order to protect the health, safety and welfare of all 


Fayette County citizens by reducing the risk of failure of dams and/or impoundments to prevent death 


or injuries to persons. 


Section 8-302. Definitions.  The following definitions are restated from the Georgia Department of 


Natural Resources, Environmental Protection Division, Chapter 391-3-8, Rules for Dam Safety. 


Category I.   The classification of a dam where improper operation or failure would result in probable 


loss of human life. Situations constituting "probable loss of life" are those situations involving 


inundation of frequently occupied structures or facilities, including, but not limited to, residences, 


commercial and manufacturing facilities, schools and churches. 


 


Category II.   The classification of a dam where improper operation or dam failure would not be 


expected to result in probable loss of human life. 


 







 2


Dam.  With the exception of the exemptions outlined in Georgia Safe Dams Act of 1978 (O.C.G.A. 


12-5-372) herein, the following: 


 
(a) Any artificial barrier, including appurtenant works, which impounds or diverts water and 


which the improper operation or failure of such would result in probable loss of human life 


as determined pursuant to the Georgia Safe Dams Act of 1978 (O.C.G.A. 12-5-372, and 


which: 


(i) is 25 feet or more in height from the downstream toe or lowest elevation of the outside 


limit of the barrier to the maximum water storage elevation; or 


(ii) has an impounding capacity at maximum water storage elevation of one hundred (100) 


acre-feet or more. 


(b) Any artificial barrier, including appurtenant works, constructed in conjunction with the 


reclamation of surface mined land, and meeting the requirements of subsection (a) above, 


and when improper operation or failure would result in probable loss of human life. 


Embankment.  A wall or bank built to impound water. 


 


Impoundment.  The water or liquid substance that is or will be stored by a dam, commonly referred 


to as the reservoir. 


 


 


Section 8-303. General Provisions. 


(a) Applicability.  This ordinance shall be applicable to any person, corporation or other entity 


proposing to construct a dam or impoundment in unincorporated Fayette County unless the 


embankment does not exceed six (6) feet in height regardless of storage capacity, or that has 


a storage capacity at maximum water storage elevation not in excess of 15-acre-feet 


regardless of height. 


(b) Designation of Ordinance Administrator: The Fayette County Stormwater Management 


Department shall administer this ordinance. 


(c) Georgia Safe Dams Act of 1978 (O.C.G.A. 12-5-370 through 12-5-385).  Any person, 


corporation or other entity proposing to construct a dam or impoundment in Fayette County 


unless the embankment does not exceed six (6) feet in height regardless of storage capacity, 


or that has a storage capacity at maximum water storage elevation not in excess of 15-acre-


feet regardless of height; must first comply with the Georgia Department of Natural 


Resources Environmental Protection Division Rules for Dam Safety, Chapter 391-3-8. 


These rules are made part of this ordinance by reference.  Additional requirements listed in 


Section 8-304 shall apply to any dams or impoundments proposed for construction that are 


listed in Chapter 391-3-8.04 of the Rules for Dam Safety. 


(d) Compatibility with Other Regulations. This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal 


any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other 


provision of law.  The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of 


any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of 


this ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance, 


rule, regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or impose 







 3


higher protective standards for human health or the environmental shall control.  No local 


government action under this ordinance relieves the land owner from federal and/or state 


permitting requirements. 


(e) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause 


of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 


judgment shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, 


subdivision or clause of this ordinance. 


(f) Effective Date. This Ordinance becomes effective upon adoption by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


Section 8-304. Prohibitions. 


No dam or impoundment shall be constructed that could wash out, by failure of the proposed dam or 


impoundment, an existing public road or downstream private driveway as determined by the 


Stormwater Management Department, and thereby restrict emergency vehicles from gaining access to 


occupied structures. 


No public roadway, right-of-way, and/or utilities except stormwater shall be located on any dam or 


impoundment. 


Section 8-305. Permit Requirements. 


Any dam proposed for construction in unincorporated Fayette County must be approved by the 


Georgia Safe Dams Office under the requirements of the Rules for Safe Dam prior to application for a 


construction permit. 


 


Any dam or impoundment proposed for construction in unincorporated Fayette County must have 


received all applicable federal and state environmental permits and must be compliant with all state 


and federal environmental regulations prior to application for a construction permit. 


 


All dam design documentation submitted to the Georgia Safe Dams Program shall also be submitted to 


the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department for review. 


 


(a) Minimum Design Requirements. 


(i) Any dam, as defined in the Safe Dams Act of 1978, proposed for construction in 


unincorporated Fayette County shall meet all Category I design and maintenance 


requirements as required by the Georgia Safe Dams Act of 1978 regardless of the 


Georgia Safe Dams Program classification. 


 


(ii) Any dam or impoundment constructed to serve as access to a private residence shall 


have a top width of a minimum of twenty (20) feet unobstructed width of access with 


an all-weather driving surface capable of supporting the imposed loads of fire 


apparatus and having a minimum vertical clearance of thirteen (13) feet six (6) inches  


(ref. SFPC 602.6.) 


Nothing contained in these requirements shall be constructed to relieve the design 


engineer from his/her responsibility to provide a design that is accurate, adequate, and 


acceptable according to generally accepted engineering practices. 







 4


(iii) Any dam or impoundment constructed shall meet all requirements for land disturbance 


as referenced in Article IX, Fayette County Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution 


Control Ordinance. 


(b) Submission of Documents.  The design documents submitted to the Stormwater 


Management Department for review shall include: 


(i) topographic drawings of the pond or lake site at a minimum scale of 1” = 100’ with 


two-foot contour intervals; 


(ii) plan, cross section and longitudinal drawings of the proposed dam showing the core, 


drains, cut-off trenches, spillways and the elevations of the 1, 5, 10, 25, 50, and 100-


year storm elevations; 


(iii) hydrologic and hydraulic design calculations including those required by the Safe 


Dams Program for Category I and II dams; 


(iv) specifications for construction; 


(v) detail drawings for appurtenances including principle and emergency spillways;  


(vi) a dam-break analysis as required by the Georgia Safe Dams Program determining the 


extent and height of the flood wave including the location of any downstream 


structures and property and the impact of failure on such property and structures; 


(vii) as-built drawings of the dam, sealed by the design engineer, shall be submitted to the 


Stormwater Management Department prior to recording the Final Plat for the 


subdivision, if applicable.  Certification of construction to specified compaction 


requirements shall also be provided, if applicable; 


(viii) access easement from the nearest street, that may or may not be a part of the 


development, for maintenance and emergency access purposes; and, 


(ix) maintenance plan for the structure that shall describe the maintenance and the parties 


responsible for maintenance as required by the Georgia Safe Dams Program for 


Category I;  


(c) Emergency Action Plan.  Provide an Emergency Action Plan based on the dam-break 


analysis.  The plan shall include, but is not limited to, a 24-hour emergency point-of-


contact; procedures to follow upon detection of possible failure; inundation maps and a list 


of owner responsibilities including all emergency notifications. 


(d) Review.  The Stormwater Management Department shall have 30 calendar days to review 


the submitted documents and to either approve them or return them to the engineer with 


comments 


Section 8-306. Ownership of Dam.  Fayette County does not accept the ownership, maintenance or 


responsibility for any dam or impoundment constructed under these regulations. 


Section 8-307. Reserved. 







 5


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 


paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed 


by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 


severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is 


hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent 


upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining 


phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall 


remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 


hereby expressly repealed. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 22nd DAY OF March, 2012. 


 


  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


 ________________________________________ 


                                  Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


______________________________ 


    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 





		Stormwater- Article 10 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Stormwater- Article 10 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-04 approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article XI, Groundwater Recharge Area Protection.


Proposed amendments to Chapter 8, Fayette County Development Regulations Article XI, Groundwater Recharge Area Protection 


include changing the regulation administrating department to Stormwater Management from Engineering; rearranging content and adding 


definitions to simplify use and understanding, and adding updates to satisfy the Department of Community Affairs environmental planning 


requirements. At the Board of Commissioners Public Hearing/Workshop held March 8, 2012, staff was instructed to place the proposed 


amendments on the Board of Commissioners' March 22, 2012 Agenda.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2012-04 approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article XI, Groundwater Recharge Area Protection.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







 1


Section 8-320. STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-04 


 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE XI 
GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AREA PROTECTION ORDINANCE; TO 
PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO 
PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO 
PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 
Commissioners thereof; 
 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 
ethical standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 
be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Article XI of Chapter 8 Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette 
County, Georgia is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
ARTICLE XI:  GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AREA PROTECTION ORDINANCE 


(Created in entirety on June 22, 2000 Ordinance 2000-13) 
 
Section 8-320. Introduction 


In order to provide for the health, safety and welfare of the public and a healthy economic climate 
within Fayette County, Georgia and surrounding communities, it is essential that the quality of Fayette 
County’s water resources be ensured for public use. For this reason, it is necessary to protect the 
subsurface water resources of Fayette County. 


Section 8-321. Definitions. 


 


Aquifer.  Any stream (rock layer) or zone of rock beneath the surface of the earth capable of 
containing or producing water from a well.  (Note:  This is the same definition used in the 
Groundwater Use Act). 


Environmental Health Manager.   This position refers to the current Department Head holding the 
title “Environmental Health County Manager”. 


Groundwater Recharge Area (synonymous with Aquifer Recharge Area).   An area of the earth's 
surface where water infiltrates the ground, thereby replenishing the groundwater supplies within an 
aquifer. 







 2


Pollution Susceptibility.   The relative vulnerability of groundwater to pollution from chemical spills, 
leaching of pollutants from dump sites, animal waste from agricultural operations or pollution 
generated by other human activities. 


Pollution Susceptibility Map(s).  Maps prepared by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources 
(DNR) that show the relative susceptibility of groundwater to pollution. Pollution susceptibility maps 
categorize the land areas of the State into areas of high, medium and low groundwater pollution 
potential. 


Significant Groundwater Recharge Area.   Areas mapped by DNR in Hydrologic Atlas 18 (1989 
Edition) are. Mapping of recharge areas is based on outcrop area, lithology (chemical nature and form 
of the rock), soil type and thickness, slope, density of lithologic contacts, geologic structure, presence 
of  “karst” topography (sinkholes, caves, and fissures associated with limestone and other carbonate 
rocks), and potentiometric surfaces. 
 
Section 8-322. Purpose and Objectives. 


Groundwater resources are contained within aquifers that are permeable, rock strata occupying vast 
regions of the subsurface. These aquifers are replenished by infiltration of surface water runoff in 
zones of the surface known as groundwater recharge areas.  Groundwater is susceptible to 
contamination when unrestricted development occurs within significant groundwater recharge 
areas. It is therefore, necessary to manage land use within groundwater recharge areas in order to 
ensure that pollution threats are minimized.  
 
The objectives of this ordinance are to: 
 


Protect groundwater quality by restricting land uses that generate, use or store dangerous 
pollutants in recharge areas; 
 
Protect groundwater quality by limiting density of development; and, 
 
Protect groundwater by ensuring that any development that occurs within the recharge area 
shall have no adverse effect on groundwater quality. 
 


Section 8-323. General Provisions 


(a) Applicability.  This ordinance shall be applicable to any person, corporation or other 
entity performing land disturbing activities that require a building permit, site plan, 
preliminary plat, or final plat approved by Fayette County. 


 
(b) Designation of Ordinance Administrator: The Fayette County Stormwater Management 


Department shall administer this ordinance. 
 


(c) Compatibility with Other Regulations. This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal 
any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or 
other provision of law.  The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the 
requirements of any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, and where 
any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any 
other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more 
restrictive or impose higher protective standards for human health or the environmental 







 3


shall control.  No local government action under this ordinance relieves the land owner 
from federal and/or state permitting requirements. 
 


(d) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or 
clause of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such judgment shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, 
paragraph, subdivision or clause of this ordinance. 
 


(e) Effective Date. This Ordinance becomes effective upon adoption by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 


Section 8-324. Establishment of a Groundwater Recharge Area District.   


A Groundwater Recharge Area District is hereby established that shall correspond to all lands within 
the jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia that are mapped as significant groundwater recharge areas 
by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources in Hydrologic Atlas 18, 1989 Edition. 


Section 8-325. Determination of Pollution Susceptibility.   


Each recharge area is determined to have a pollution susceptibility of high, medium or low based on 
the Georgia Pollution Susceptibility Map prepared by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources in 
Hydrologic Atlas 20, 1992 Edition.  Groundwater recharge areas in Fayette County are located in low 
pollution susceptibility areas. 


Section 8-326. Submittal Requirements.  


 
With the exception of  activities identified in (c) below that are exempt from this ordinance, any land 
disturbing activity in a Groundwater Recharge Area District shall identify the Groundwater Recharge 
Area District on any submittals to the County including, but not limited to a site plan, preliminary plat, 
or a final plat, depending on the nature of the development.  
 
The following information, in addition to any other requirements for site plans, preliminary plats, or 
final plats per the Fayette County Development Regulations, is required for all development within 
Groundwater Recharge Areas:  
 


(a) Location and detailed design of any spill and leak collection systems designed for the 
purpose of containing accidentally released hazardous or toxic materials. 
 


(b) All development activities or site work conducted after site plan, preliminary plat, or final 
plat approval shall conform to specifications of said site plan, preliminary plat, or final 
plat. Significant changes to the site plan, preliminary plat, or final plat that alter the 
amount and velocity of stormwater runoff from the site, increase the amount of 
impervious surface within the development, alter the overall density of development, 
result in an increase in the amount of excavation, fill or removal of vegetation during 
construction or otherwise result in an alteration of the overall appearance of the 
development as proposed, can be amended only with the approval by Fayette County.  


(c) The following activities are exempt from the requirement of this ordinance: 


 







 4


(i) Repairs to a facility that is part of a previously approved and permitted 
development. 


(ii) Construction of minor structures, such as sheds or additions to single family 
residences.  


Section 8-327. Groundwater Protection Standards. 


 
(a) New waste disposal facilities must have synthetic lines and leachate collection systems. 


(b) A SCS approved liner must be provided for new agricultural waste impoundments 
exceeding fifty (50) acre-feet. .  As a minimum, the liner shall be constructed of 
compacted clay having a thickness of one-foot and a vertical hydraulic conductivity of 
less than 5x10-7 cm/sec or other criteria established by the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service.  (Amended 12/5/01). 


(c) No land disposal of hazardous waste shall be permitted within any Significant 
Groundwater Recharge Area. 


(d) For all significant Groundwater Recharge Areas, the handling, storage and disposal of 
hazardous materials shall take place on an impermeable surface having spill and leak 
protection approved by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources, Environmental 
Protection Division (EPD).  New facilities that handle hazardous materials of the types 
listed in Section 312 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (excluding 
underground storage tanks) and in the amounts of 10,000 pounds or more on any one day, 
shall perform their operations on impervious surfaces and in conformance with any 
applicable federal spill prevention requirements and local fire code requirements.  
(Amended 12/05/01). 


(e) For all Significant Groundwater Recharge Areas, new above ground chemical or 
petroleum storage tanks larger than 650 gallons must have secondary containment of 110 
percent of tank volume or 110 percent of the largest tanks in a cluster of tanks. 


(f) No construction may proceed on a building or mobile home to be served by a septic tank 
unless Fayette County Health Department first approves the proposed septic tank 
installations as meeting the requirements of the Georgia Department of Human Resources 
Manual for On-Site Sewage Management Systems (hereinafter referred to as DHR 
Manual) and Section 8-328-g of this ordinance. (Amended 12/5/01). 


(g) Minimum lot size for new homes served by an individual septic tank/drain field system 
will be based on Table MT-1 of the DHR Manual and the Criteria for Protection of 
Groundwater Recharge Areas, A through D.  Minimum lot or space size for mobile 
homes served by an individual septic tank/drain field system will be based on Table MT-
2 of the DHR Manual and the Criteria for Protection of Groundwater Recharge Areas, A 
through D.  Section M, Lot Sizing of the DHR Manual states in the Criteria for Protection 
of Groundwater Area, that if a local government requires a larger lot size than that 
required by (2A) of the DHR Manual for homes or (2B) of the DHR Manual for mobile 
homes, the larger lot size shall be used.  Section M, Lot Sizing of the DHR Manual is 
included as an addendum to this ordinance.  (Amended 12/05/01) 


 







 5


 


Section 8-328. Penalties 


 


(a) In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been 
completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or 
more of the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to 
whom the notice of violation was directed.  Before taking any of the following actions or 
imposing any of the following penalties, the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department shall first notify the owner/operator or other responsible person in writing of 
its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10) 
days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public 
health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation. 


In the event the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to cure such violation 
after such notice and cure period, the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department may take any one or more of the following actions or impose any one or 
more of the following penalties. 


(i) Stop Work Order -The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may 
issue a stop work order which shall be served on the owner/operator or other 
responsible person.  The stop work order shall remain in effect until the 
owner/operator or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set 
forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or violations 
described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified to 
enable the owner/operator or other responsible person to take the necessary 
remedial measures to cure such violation or violations.  


(ii) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Department may suspend, revoke or modify any permit 
authorizing any development on the project.  A suspended, revoked or modified 
permit may be reinstated after the owner/operator or other responsible person has 
taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise 
cured the violations described therein, provided such permit may be reinstated 
(upon such conditions as the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department 
may deem necessary) to enable the owner/operator or other responsible person to 
take the necessary remedial measures to cure such violations. 


(b) Civil Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance or in the event 
the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures set 
forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations described therein 
within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation 
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be 
sufficient), the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may impose a 
penalty not to exceed $1,000 (depending on the severity of the violation) for each day the 
violation is not remediated after receipt of the notice of violation. 


 







 6


(c) Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the 
event the owner/operator or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures 
set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations described 
therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation 
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be 
sufficient), the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may issue a citation 
to the owner/operator or other responsible person, requiring such person to appear in 
Fayette County State Court to answer charges for such violation.  Upon conviction, such 
person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $2,500.00 per day, per violation or a 
sentence of imprisonment for 60 days or both.  Each act of violation and each day upon 
which any violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense. 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed 
by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is 
hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent 
upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 
Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall 
remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 
hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 
specified herein. 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 7


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 8th DAY OF March, 2012. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
                                  Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 


 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 





		Stormwater- Article 11 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Stormwater- Article 11 Backup






MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


February 23, 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on February 23, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the February 23, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the agenda as published.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Kim Jackson and Sandy Edwards, representing the Cooperative Extension Service, will present
information about their Master Gardeners program and the various volunteer projects completed over
the past year.


Agricultural and Natural Resources Program Development Extension Coordinator Sheldon Hammond,
Agricultural and Natural Resource Agent Kim Jackson, Horticulture Program Assistant Sandy Edwards, and
Fayette Master Gardener’s President Tom Wilson presented information about the Master Gardeners’ program







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 2


and the various volunteer projects completed over the course of the year to the Board.  Then they gave the
Board a ceremonial check, for $294,047.06, on behalf of the Master Gardener Extension Volunteers,
symbolizing their total contributions to the Fayette community in the year 2011.  The Board took no action on
this item.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


2. Pam Young of the Southern Conservation Trust will present information about the organization.


Pam Young, Executive Director of the Southern Conservation Trust, gave a presentation to the Board about
the organization.  The Board took no action on this item.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2",
follows this discussion and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Randy Ognio: Mr. Randy Ognio asked the Board to reconsider its approval to place a monopole, cellular tower at Fire
Station Number 1, since he was concerned that this action would place government into competition with the private
sector.  He said it was the government’s job to serve and protect; not compete.  He then gave some examples of how
this placement competed against the private sector.  Mr. Ognio next addressed the appointments of several positions
listed on the agenda, saying that he was concerned about unadvertised, open positions, that potential candidates did
not know of available opportunities, and that there was no methodology in choosing nominees to various positions.  He
commended the nominees who were willing to step up and serve Fayette County, thanked them for their service, said
he did not want the nominees to feel he was against them personally, but repeated that he wanted to get others involved.
He closed his comments informing Commissioner Hearn that his time in office was limited since he now had competition.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 3 - 5.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


3. Approval of staff’s request for authorization for the Chairman to execute a contract with Message Center
Management allowing for a monopole cellular tower to be placed on the site of Fire Station No. 1.  A
copy of the request and contract, identified as “Attachment 3", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


4. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow Main Street Fayetteville to insert an
informational flyer in the April-May water bills, and then to allow Main Street Fayetteville to insert a
second flyer in the June-July water bills.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of the February 1, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


6. Consideration of staff’s recommendations regarding the County’s employee health benefit plan, and
authorization for the Chairman to sign any forthcoming contracts and related documents contingent
upon the County Attorney’s review.







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 3


Assistant Human Resources Director Lewis Patterson and Ms. Jackie Turner, representing Pacific General,
spoke to the Board about staff’s proposed recommendations pertaining the County’s employee health benefit
plan.  Mr. Patterson briefly highlighted how staff’s proposals would modify the County’s current plan.  Among
the proposed recommendations were:


1.  The employee health benefit plan would be administered by Humana.


2. An employee’s co-pay would rise from $25 to $30.


3.  The plan would change from a 100% in-network plan to a 90% / 60% coinsurance plan.


4. There were no recommended changes to the current dental plan; however, administration of the
dental plan would transfer to Humana.


5. There were no recommended changes to the current vision plan; however, administration of the plan
would be brought in house. 


6. COBRA, HIPAA and FSA would transfer servicing and administration duties from Meritain to Humana.


7. Annual Premium Employee Life / Accidental Death and Disability (AD&D) insurance, Dependent Life
AD&D insurance, and Long Term Disability Insurance, all of which is currently administered by
Assurant, would be transferred to UNUM for administration.


8. The County would no longer support workplace access of AFLAC / Colonial to employees for
enrollment; instead, both Colonial and Aflac would be combined into a single offering through UNUM.


Concerning the eighth modification, Mr. Patterson explained that the County has a longstanding relationship
with both Colonial and Aflac, and that staff would not have a problem if the Board continued that relationship.


Chairman Frady asked if he properly understood that under the current plan, employees could purchase their
supplemental insurance from Colonial, Aflac, or UNUM.  Mr. Patterson agreed that Colonial and Aflac sold
supplemental insurance such as cancer policies and long-term care policies, but he clarified that under the
current system, employees had a choice only between Colonial and Aflac; not UNUM.  Chairman Frady replied
that he wanted the current options to remain in place since employees should have choices on their insurance,
and he did not want to be in the position of telling employees they could purchase their policies from only one
company.  He added that the employees were purchasing their own insurance, and the Board should not limit
the employees to only one vendor.


Commissioner Horgan asked if there was a possibility to have UNUM, Aflac, and Colonial offered to the
employees.  He also asked if the current employee health benefit plan changed, what would be the affect on
both the employees and their policies.  Ms. Jackie Turner replied that UNUM could be the vendor for the
employer-sponsored program, but that the Board would have to decide whether it wanted Colonial or UNUM
for its voluntary worksite program since the two companies would not be able to compete against each other
due to common ownership and internal corporate policies.  She continued that if the County decided to embrace
UNUM as its single source provider, anyone who currently has a policy with Colonial or Aflac would have the
ability to keep their policy, if it is in their best interest.  She explained that in many situations, it might be more
beneficial for employees to move their policies to UNUM.  She said that one situation staff considered was that







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 4


if a move to UNUM were not beneficial to an employee, a benefit advisor would arrange for the employee to
keep his or her current policies on a direct pay basis with Colonial or Aflac.  Commissioner Horgan asked if
payments to either Colonial or Aflac could still be made through deductions from the employee’s pay.  County
Administrator Jack Krakeel responded that employees would continue to be able to utilize payroll deductions
for their plans.


Commissioner Hearn noted that, during his time as an employee of Fayette County, he found Colonial’s agent
to be extremely helpful and he never felt pressured by the agent.  He stated that he wanted to continue with
Colonial and Aflac, and that some of the advantages of staying with those companies were that the employees
had confidence in them, and that there was a loyalty factor since both companies had worked with Fayette
County for over thirty years.  


Chairman Frady repeated that the County is not going to administer supplemental insurance policies, that this
issue was similar to an employee purchasing their own insurance policies without the Board’s knowledge, but
that in this instance the only difference was that the Board was allowing employees to pay for their insurance
through payroll deductions.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve staff’s recommendations regarding the County employee health benefit
plan, to authorize the Chairman to sign any forthcoming contracts contingent upon the County Attorney’s
review, and to continue to provide access to Colonial and Aflac insurance companies.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel stated there was one issue he wanted to bring up before Ms. Turner
provided sample [real-life] scenarios to the Board.  He said staff would be engaged, over the course of the next
couple of months prior to open enrollment, in educating the employees regarding the changes to the plan.  He
explained that under the existing plan, an employee has a $500 deductible and all remaining costs after that
deductible are covered at a 100% rate.  He continued that with the recommended plan, there continues to be
a $500 deductible, and then the balance of the deductible is paid at 90% until an employee reaches an
additional out-of-pocket expense of $500.  He explained that there was a principle reason for the change,
namely, that it is “absolutely critical that the cost of healthcare be a shared responsibility between the employer
and the employee, and that there should be some level of financial interest on the part of the employee with
respect to the healthcare they are selecting.”  He continued that this financial investment by the employees
would encourage the employees to become more “consumer-oriented decision makers with respect to their
healthcare purchases”.  He added that the County is trying to create a catalyst so that employees are truly
partners with the County in controlling healthcare costs on a go-forward basis, and that as healthcare costs
substantially continue to rise, the county has to make sure necessary drivers are in place to achieve a true
partnership in controlling costs.


After Ms. Turner provided a couple of real-life scenarios to the Board and how the recommended plan differed
from the current plan in those scenarios, Commissioner Brown suggested that those scenarios should be
placed into a document and provided to the employees so they could understand the changes.  Mr. Krakeel
replied that he already asked staff to make the educational information so that the employees could understand
the changes.  Mr. Patterson added that Open Enrollment would begin in April, but that Human Resources
wanted to begin the educational process in March in order to bring the employees up to speed.







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 5


The motion to approve staff’s recommendations regarding the County employee health benefit plan, to
authorize the Chairman to sign any forthcoming contracts contingent upon the County Attorney’s review, and
to provide access to Colonial and Aflac insurance companies for county employees passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request and contract, identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve Bid #819, awarding two separate annual contracts to
Seaco, Inc. and to Blackledge Emulsions, Inc., for the purchase of CRS-2h Asphalt Emulsion, in an
aggregate amount not to exceed $45,000.


Road Department Director Andy Adams informed the Board that asphalt emulsion is a product used to
resurface roads.  He continued that two separate contracts are required because the product is sensitive to
temperature; meaning a cool spring season presents one set of conditions while a hot summer season presents
another set of conditions.  He explained that during the summer, a tanker truck could deliver the product on site
where it is unloaded into a County truck.  When the product is gone, the vendor would bring another tanker
truck of material.  He said this practice differs from the spring and autumn months when cooler temperatures
cause the asphalt emulsion to gel and become unusable.  He said during the cooler months, a second contract
would allow the County to pick up what it needs in a Road Department vehicle with a heater in it, and that the
heater would keep the emulsion warm so that it does not gel.  


Commissioner Brown acknowledged that the product was used for road resurfacing, and he asked if it would
be used on the West Fayetteville Bypass.  Mr. Adams replied that the product is used when one layer of asphalt
is placed on another existing layer of asphalt, and he added that the product could be used on the West
Fayetteville Bypass.


Commissioner Hearn asked Mr. Adams to explain the Asphalt Cement Price Index.  Mr. Adams replied that the
Asphalt Cement Price Index is a list of prices published by the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT)
once a month.  He explained that private businesses adjust the costs of their asphalt related products based
on the price of oil as it increases or decreases, and that the Asphalt Cement Price Index would correlate to the
price vendors are paying for oil at market price.  He continued that two years ago, the cost for asphalt emulsion
may have been cheaper, but now that the Asphalt Cement Price Index has risen and everything costs more,
the vendors are “still willing to work with the County because they know their price is related to the index”.  


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve staff’s recommendation to approve Bid #819, awarding two separate
annual contracts to Seaco, Inc. and to Blackledge Emulsions, Inc., for the purchase of CRS-2h Asphalt
Emulsion, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $45,000.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  A
copy of the request and contracts, identified as “Attachment 6", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 6


8. Consideration of reappointment of Randy Hayes to the Fayette County Development Authority for an
additional four-year term to commence on April 10, 2012 and end on April 9, 2016.


Chairman Frady noted that Mr. Hayes had served Fayette County “for a good long while”, that he was “sure
there was a resume in a file somewhere for him”, and that he had been vetted for all of the years of his service.
He thought Mr. Hayes was qualified for the job and he recommended the Board approve of his reappointment.


Chairman Frady moved to reappoint Randy Hayes to the Fayette County Development Authority for an
additional four-year term to commence on April 10, 2012 and to expire on April 9, 2016.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown stated that he would “stick to his principles and not support any position that is not
publically advertised”.  He said he had “a position that these types of positions need to be advertised when they
become available in order to draw from a wide range of talent” in Fayette County, and then to make a selection
from that pool of applicants.  


The motion to reappoint Randy Hayes to the Fayette County Development Authority for an additional four-year
term to commence on April 10, 2012 and to expire on April 9, 2016 passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown voting
in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


9. Approval of a request from the County Clerk for authorization to file the required Certificate of
Appointment indicating that the Fayette County Democratic Party has reappointed Darryl Hicks to the
Board of Elections for a four-year term to commence February 1, 2012 and expiring January 31, 2016.


Chairman Frady explained that this request was similar to the type of request recently approved for the
Republican Committee who appointed their person to the Elections Board, and that the Board of
Commissioners is only verifying the fact that the appointment has been made.  He said the Board would certify
the Democratic Party’s action and send it to the Clerk’s office to be filed.  


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve the County Clerk’s request for authorization to file the required
Certificate of Appointment indicating that the Fayette County Democratic Party has reappointed Darryl Hicks
to the Board of Elections for a four-year term to commence February 1, 2012 and expiring January 31, 2016.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Consideration of the appointment of Lt. Debbie Chambers, of the City of Fayetteville Police Department,
to the Fayette County Department of Family and Children Services Board for a five-year term to
commence on January 24, 2012 and expiring on January 23, 2017.


Commissioner Horgan moved to appoint Lt. Debbie Chambers, of the City of Fayetteville Police Department,
to the Fayette County Department of Family and Children Services Board for a five-year term to commence on
January 24, 2012 and expiring on January 23, 2017.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown clarified that this motion was for an original appointment, and not a reappointment.  He
then asked if this position had been advertised.  Executive Assistant Carol Chandler replied that this position
had not been advertised.







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 7


  The motion to appoint Lt. Debbie Chambers, of the City of Fayetteville Police Department, to the Fayette
County Department of Family and Children Services Board for a five-year term to commence on January 24,
2012 and expiring on January 23, 2017 passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown voting in opposition.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Consideration of the reappointment of Dr. Michael Strain to another six-year term on the Fayette County
Board of Health commencing on January 1, 2012 and expiring on December 31, 2017.


Commissioner Horgan moved to reappoint Dr. Michael Strain to another six-year term on the Fayette County
Board of Health commencing on January 1, 2012 and expiring on December 31, 2017.  He noted that he serves
on the Board of Health with Dr. Strain, and that he felt the doctor had done exemplary work on the Board.
Chairman Frady seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown asked if the position was advertised.  Executive Assistant Carol Chandler replied that it
was not advertised.


 The motion to reappoint Dr. Michael Strain to another six-year term on the Fayette County Board of Health
commencing on January 1, 2012 and expiring on December 31, 2017 passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown
voting in opposition. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


12. Consideration of the reappointment of Jack Krakeel to an additional four-year term on the Fayette
County Hospital Authority which will commence on June 1, 2012 and will end on May 31, 2016.


Commissioner Horgan moved to reappoint Jack Krakeel to an additional four-year term on the Fayette County
Hospital Authority that will commence on June 1, 2012 and will end on May 31, 2016.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown stated that he understood the importance of having someone connected with the County
appointed to the Hospital Authority Board.  However, he noted, that most counties have a Commissioner who
sits on that Board.  He suggested that if the Board would consider placing a County Commissioner on the
Hospital Authority Board, he would support the motion.


The motion to reappoint Jack Krakeel to an additional four-year term on the Fayette County Hospital Authority
that will commence on June 1, 2012 and will end on May 31, 2016 passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown voting
in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


13. Consideration of the reappointment of Ken Schall to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for
a three-year term with said term commencing on July 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2015.


Executive Assistant Carol Chandler read the agenda item, and explained that Mr. Schall is a long time member
of the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board, and that those seats do have some criteria associated with
them.  She explained that there were no term limits, that Mr. Schall had been recommended for reappointment,
and that he expressed willingness to “accept the chore” if reappointed.  Chairman Frady said the Board
appreciated his service, as well as everyone’s service who volunteers for Fayette County.  







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 8


Commissioner Horgan moved to reappoint Ken Schall to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for a
three-year term with said term commencing on July 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2015.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown asked if this position had been advertised.  Ms. Chandler replied that the position had
not been advertised.


The motion to reappoint Ken Schall to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for a three-year term with
said term commencing on July 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2015 passed 4-1 with Commissioner Brown
voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


14. Consideration of the appointment of Ms. Jackie Begg to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning
Board for a three-year term to commence on March 1, 2012, and to end on February 28, 2015.


Commissioner Horgan moved to appoint Ms. Jackie Begg to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning
Board for a three-year term to commence on March 1, 2012 and to end on February 28, 2015.  He explained
that Ms. Begg was in the audience, and that this nomination was to fill one of two available seats on the Board.
He repeated that there was a second position available, and that if anyone wanted to fill that position they could
talk to Dr. Strain on the Board of Health for further information.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown asked if the position had been advertised to the public at large.  Executive Assistant Carol
Chandler replied that the position had not been advertised.


 The motion to appoint Ms. Jackie Begg to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board for a three-
year term to commence on March 1, 2012 and to end on February 28, 2015 passed 4-1 with Commissioner
Brown voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


Chairman Frady commented that “God help this county if we ever get to a position where someone tries to
change every experienced person that we have serving us on this Board.  Amen.”


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Open House Concerning the Interstate 85 / State Route 74 Interchange: County Administrator Jack Krakeel
reminded the Board that it has historically had significant discussions concerning the interchange at Interstate 85 and
State Route 74.  He continued that the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) was going to hold an open house
and provide public information, on Tuesday, February 28, 2012, about proposed modifications to that interchange.  He
informed the Board that the open house would be held at the Bedford School Gymnasium located at 5665 Milam Road,
Fairburn, Georgia from 4:30 p.m. until 8:30 p.m.  He repeated that this is an open house, that the Board and members
of the public would be able to attend, and that he would email the Board with further information.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Brown spoke about the interchange at Interstate 85 and State Route 74,
and he said he had spoken to several groups across Fayette County and to one group in Fulton County where this
subject had arisen.  He wanted to reiterate that there are three different scenarios associated with the interchange.  He







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 9


told the Board that GDOT already has money set aside with a plan to modify the interchange.  He said this money was
not a part of the Transportation Investment Act (TIA).  He added that there is a second plan in place that has more
money in it, including TIA money, if the act passes.  Then he continued that the third plan would be one of the “better
case scenarios” and that is not in either one of the plans, regardless of TIA funding, and he said he is working on getting
“those components included in the plan” and that there was an effort to get GDOT to recognize some of the components.
He said the importance of having the components in the plan was because, if money for roads and bridges become
available (as President Obama is actively discussing), if there is not components in the planning stages, the plan itself
will not be eligible for those funds for additional components for the interchange.  He concluded that there is constant
work in enhancing the plan and getting GDOT to recognize the other components needed to make it the best-case
scenario.  Next, Commissioner Brown reiterated that while he did not have anything personal against the people holding
appointed positions, he was holding to the principle that the County has an obligation to advertise open, public positions.
He said if the people do not know positions are available, then the people would not get the positions.  He added that
there are a large number of people who have served for a long time whose services are great, but there are others who
never have an opportunity because they are not told of open positions.  He said, to that end, there is a Recreation
Commission position that is open, that he has been told that the position is his responsibility for his district, and that he
has sent a press release to the newspapers advertising the position publically.  He said there is a questionnaire for
interested and passionate candidates to complete, and that the form is available from Executive Assistant Carol
Chandler.


Chairman Herb Frady: Chairman Frady addressed Commissioner Brown’s comments about the Interstate 85 and State
Route 74 interchange.  He said he had conversations with Todd Long, who is the planner for the State of Georgia’s
Department of Transportation, and that Mr. Long said he attended a meeting that Commissioner Brown and others were
attending, and at that meeting Mr. Long reiterated to Commissioner Brown that they [GDOT] realized they needed more
work and plans for the area.  He continued that Mr. Long had informed Commissioner Brown that he would be glad to
get some of those efforts going if Commissioner Brown would inform him where to get money.  He said that Mr. Long
informed him that GDOT did not have the money to do what Commissioner Brown was asking for.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel: County Administrator Jack Krakeel responded that, concerning the Interstate 85
and State Route 74 Interchange, the Board had previously instructed staff about the development of a resolution
subsequent to having conversations with GDOT.  He said the genesis of that discussion was a “Phase 1 / Phase 2"
approach to that intersection design.  He reported that staff is in the process of developing the resolution, and it would
be brought before the Board at the March 8, 2012 meeting.  Mr. Krakeel next reminded the Board that it had requested
that the County’s Director of Public Works, Phil Mallon, provide an update to the Board and public on the County’s
SPLOST transportation program.  He reminded the Board that it had agreed that the appropriate time to provide this
update was subsequent to the Workshop SPLOST meetings that are held before the second, Thursday night Board of
Commissioners meeting of each month.  He then asked Mr. Mallon to provide a brief overview and update on the current
SPLOST program.


SPLOST Update: Public Works Director Phil Mallon updated the Board on SPLOST projects in both the municipalities
and in unincorporated Fayette County.  The Board took no action on this update.







Minutes
February 23, 2012
Page Number 10


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the February 23, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned from their February 23, 2012 meeting at 8:03 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk                Hebert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 22nd day of March 2012.


___________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-05 approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article XIII, Illicit Discharge and Illegal Connections.


Proposed amendments to Chapter 8, Fayette County Development Regulations Article XIII, Illicit Discharge and Illegal Connections 


include changing the administrating department to Stormwater Management from Engineering, rearranging content to simplify use and 


understanding, and clarifying submissions for EPD compliance with the county's municipal separate storm sewer system NPDES permit.  


At the Board of Commissioners Public Hearing/Workshop held March 8, 2012, staff was instructed to place the proposed amendments on 


the Board of Commissioners' March 22, 2012 Agenda. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-05 approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article XIII, Illicit Discharge and Illegal Connections.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







 1


STATE OF GEORGIA;  
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012- 05 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, THE FAYETTE COUNTY 


DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED SPECIFICALLY 


ARTICLE XIII ILLICIT DISCHARGE AND ILLEGAL CONNECTION TO 


PROVIDE FOR METHODS FOR PROHIBITING AND ABATING NON-


STORMWATER DISCHARGES IN THE COUNTY’S SEPARATE STORM 


SEWER SYSTEM AND/OR STATE WATERS; TO PROVIDE FOR 


CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR 


PENALTIES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE 


AN ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 


OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 
 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 
ethical standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 
be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Article XIII of Chapter 8 Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances, 
Fayette County, Georgia is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 


ARTICLE XIII:  ILLICIT DISCHARGE AND ILLEGAL CONNECTION 


 


Section 8-400.  Introduction.  


It is hereby determined that: 


Discharges to Fayette County’s municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) that are not composed 
entirely of stormwater runoff contribute to increased nonpoint source pollution and degradation of 
receiving waters; 
 
These non-stormwater discharges occur due to spills, dumping and illegal connections to the county’s 
MS4 and state waters from residential, industrial, commercial or institutional establishments;   
 
These non-stormwater discharges not only impact waterways individually, but geographically 
dispersed, small volume non-stormwater discharges can have cumulative impacts on receiving waters; 
 
These impacts of non-stormwater discharges adversely affect public health and safety, drinking water 
supplies, recreation, fish and other aquatic life, property values and other uses of lands and waters; 
 







 2


These impacts can be minimized through the regulation of spills, dumping and discharges into the 
county’s MS4 and state waters; 
 
Localities in the State of Georgia are required to comply with a number of State and Federal laws, 
regulations and permits which require a locality to address the impacts of stormwater runoff quality 
and nonpoint source pollution due to improper non-stormwater discharges to the county’s MS4; 
 
Therefore, Fayette County adopts this ordinance to prohibit such non-stormwater discharges to the 
county’s MS4 and state waters.  It is determined that the regulation of spills, improper dumping and 
discharges to the county’s MS4 and state waters is in the public interest and will prevent threats to 
public health and safety, and the environment. 
 


Section 8-401.  Definitions. 
 
Accidental Discharge. A discharge prohibited by this ordinance that occurs by chance and without 
planning or thought prior to occurrence. 
 
Clean Water Act.  The Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.) and any 
subsequent amendments thereto. 
 
Construction Activity.   Activities subject to the Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act or 
NPDES General Construction Permits.  These include construction projects resulting in land 
disturbance.  Such activities include, but are not limited to, clearing and grubbing, grading, excavating, 
and demolition.  


 


Illicit Discharge.  Any direct or indirect non-stormwater discharge to the county’s MS4 and/or state 
waters, except as exempted in Section 8-403 of this ordinance. 
 
Illegal Connection.   Either of the following: 
 


(a) Any pipe, open channel, drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, that 
allows an illicit discharge to enter the MS4  and/or state waters including but not limited to 
any conveyances that allows any non-stormwater discharge including sewage, process 


wastewater, and wash water to enter the MS4 and/or state waters, regardless of whether such 
pipe, open channel, drain or conveyance has been previously allowed, permitted, or approved 
by an authorized enforcement agency; or 


(b) Any pipe, open channel, drain or conveyance connected to the county’s MS4 not documented 
in Fayette County approved plans, maps, or equivalent records and approved by an authorized 
enforcement agency. 
 


Industrial Activity.  Activities subject to NPDES Industrial Permits as defined in 40 CFR, Section 
122.26 (b)(14). 
 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4).  Any system designed or used for collecting 
and/or conveying stormwater, including but not limited to any roads with drainage systems, street and 
roadway, gutters, inlets, catch basins, piped storm drains, pumping facilities, structural controls, 
ditches, swales, natural and man-made or altered drainage channels, reservoirs, and other drainage 
structures, and which is: 
 
 







 3


(a) owned or maintained by Fayette County; 
 


(b) not a combined sewer; and 
 


(c)  not part of a publicly-owned treatment works. 
 


National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Storm Water Discharge Permit.  A 
permit issued by the Georgia EPD under authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC § 1342(b) that 
authorizes the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the permit is applicable 
to an individual, group, or general area-wide basis. 
 
Non-Stormwater Discharge.  Any discharge to the county’s MS4 and/or state waters not composed 
entirely of stormwater. 
 
Owner and/or Operator.  The legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a 
mortgagee or vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person, firm or 
corporation in control of the site. 
 
Person.  Except to the extent exempted from this ordinance, any individual, partnership, firm, 
association, joint venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate, commission, board, public or 
private institution, utility, cooperative, city, county or other political subdivision of the state, any 
interstate body or any other legal entity. 


 
Pollutant.  Any liquid, gas, solid, radioactive, hazardous, or other substance, that, when not used 
and/or disposed of in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions, causes or contributes to pollution.  
Pollutants include, but are not limited to:  
 


(a) paints, varnishes, and solvents; 
 


(b) petroleum hydrocarbons;   
 


(c) automotive fluids;  
 


(d) cooking grease;  
 


(e) detergents (biodegradable or otherwise);  
 


(f) degreasers; 
 


(g) cleaning chemicals;  
 


(h) non-hazardous liquid and solid wastes and yard wastes;  
 


(i) refuse, rubbish, garbage, litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects and accumulations 
(that may cause or contribute to pollution);  


 
(j) floatables; 


 
(k) pesticides, herbicides, and fertilizers; 


 
(l) liquid and solid wastes, sewage, fecal coliform and pathogens;  







 4


 
(m) dissolved and particulate metals;  


 
(n) animal wastes;  


 
(o) wastes and residues that result from building construction waste;  


 
(p) concrete and cement; and, 


 
(q) noxious or offensive matter of any kind.  


 
Pollution.  The contamination or other alteration of any water’s physical, chemical or biological 
properties by the addition of any constituent and includes but is not limited to; a change in 
temperature, taste, color, turbidity, or odor of such waters, or the discharge of any liquid, gaseous, 
solid, radioactive, or other pollutant into any such waters as will or is likely to create a nuisance or 
render such waters harmful, detrimental or injurious to the public health, safety, welfare, or 
environment, or to domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate 
beneficial uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish or other aquatic life. 
 
Premises.  Any building, lot, parcel of land, or portion of land whether improved or unimproved 
including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips. 
 
State Waters.   Any and all rivers, streams, creeks, branches, lakes, reservoirs, ponds, stormwater 
drainage systems, springs, wells, and other bodies of surface and subsurface water, natural or artificial, 
lying within or forming a part of the boundaries of the state that are not entirely confined and retained 
completely upon the property of a single owner, home owner associations, partnership or corporation.  


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes 
inlets, street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground piping systems. 


Stormwater Structural Control.  An engineered stormwater management device that controls 
stormwater runoff and/or changes mitigates the effects of that increased runoff. 


Section 8-402.  General Provisions. 


 
(a) Purpose and Intent.  The purpose of this ordinance is to protect the public health, safety, 


environment and general welfare through the regulation of non-stormwater discharges to the 
maximum extent practicable as required by Federal law.  This ordinance establishes 
methods for controlling the introduction of pollutants into the county’s MS4 and/or state 
waters in order to comply with requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit process.  The objectives of this ordinance are to: 


(i) Regulate the contribution of pollutants into the county’s MS4 and/or state waters; 


(ii) Prohibit illicit discharges and illegal connections into the county’s MS4 and/or state 
waters; 


(iii) Prevent non-stormwater discharges, generated as a result of spills and inappropriate 
dumping or disposal, to the county’s MS4 and/or state waters; and, 


(iv) To establish legal authority to carry out all inspection, surveillance, monitoring and 
enforcement procedures necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance. 







 5


(b) Applicability.  The provisions of this ordinance shall apply throughout the unincorporated 
area of Fayette County.  
 


(c) Designation of Ordinance Administrator.  The Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Director shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this ordinance except for 
issues pertaining to human or animal waste (i.e. sewage) which shall be administered, 
implemented, and enforced by the Fayette County Environmental Health Department. 


 
(d) Compatibility with Other Regulations.  This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal 


any other ordinance, rule, regulation, or other provision of law.  The requirements of this 
ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, regulation, or 
other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions 
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation, or other provision of 
law, whichever provision is more restrictive or imposes higher protective standards for 
human health or the environment shall control. 
 


(e) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause 
of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
judgment shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, 
subdivision or clause of this ordinance. 


Section 8-403.  Prohibitions. 


 
(a) Prohibition of Illicit Discharges.  No person, owner or operator shall throw, drain, or 


otherwise discharge, cause, or allow others under their control to throw, drain, or otherwise 
discharge into the county’s MS4 and/or state waters any pollutants or waters containing any 
pollutants. 


 
(b) Exempted Discharges.  The following discharges are exempt from the prohibition provision 


above: 


(i) Water line flushing performed by a government agency, other potable water sources, 
landscape irrigation or lawn watering, diverted stream flows, rising ground water, 
ground water infiltration to storm drains, uncontaminated pumped ground water, 
foundation or footing drains (not including active groundwater dewatering systems), 
crawl space pumps, air conditioning condensation, springs, natural riparian habitat or 
wetland flows, and any other water source not containing pollutants; 


(ii) Discharges or flows from fire fighting, and other discharges specified in writing by 
the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health 
Department(s) as being necessary to protect public health and safety; 


(iii) Non-stormwater discharges permitted under an NPDES permit or order issued to the 
discharger and administered under the authority of the State and the Federal 
Environmental Protection Agency, provided that the discharger is in full compliance 
with all requirements of the permit, waiver, or orders and other applicable laws and 
regulations; written approval has been granted for any discharge to the county’s MS4 
and/or state waters; and 


 







 6


(iv) Agricultural operations as defined in Section 8-243(5) of Fayette County’s Soil 
Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance. 


 
(c) Prohibition of Illegal Connections.  The construction, connection, use, maintenance or 


continued existence of any illegal connection to the county’s MS4 and/or state waters is 
prohibited.   


(i) This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, illegal connections made in 
the past, regardless of whether the connection was permissible under law or practices 
applicable or prevailing at the time of connection. 


(ii) A person violates this ordinance if the person connects a line conveying sewage to the 
county MS4 and/or state waters, or allows such a connection to continue. 


(iii) Illegal connections in violation of this ordinance must be disconnected and redirected, 
if necessary, to an approved onsite wastewater management system or other sanitary 
sewer system upon approval of the Fayette County Environmental Health Department. 


(iv) Any drain or conveyance that has not been documented in plans, maps or equivalent, 
and that is connected to the county’s MS4, shall be permitted according to Section 19-
100 of the Fayette County Stormwater Management Ordinance or relocated by the 
owner or occupant of that property upon receipt of written notice of violation from the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management Department requiring that such locating be 
completed.  Such notice will specify a reasonable period for relocation or permitting 
of the drain or conveyance to be completed.  


 


Section 8-404.  Industrial or Construction Activity Discharges. 


 


Any person, owner, or operator of a facility subject to an industrial or construction activity NPDES 
stormwater discharge permit shall comply with all provisions of such permit.  A copy of the Notice of 
Intent submitted to the Georgia Environmental Protection Department shall be submitted to Fayette 
County Stormwater Management Department.  
 


Section 8-405.  Access and Inspection of Properties and Facilities. 


 


The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and/or Environmental Health Department 
shall be permitted to enter and inspect properties and facilities at reasonable times as often as may be 
necessary to determine compliance with this ordinance. 
 


(a) If a property or facility has security measures in force that requires proper identification and 
clearance before entry onto premises, the owner and/or operator shall make the necessary 
arrangements to allow access to representatives of the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department and/or Environmental Health Department(s). 


 
(b) The owner and/or operator shall allow the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or 


Environmental Health Department(s) ready access to all parts of the premises for the 
purposes of inspection, sampling, photography, videotaping, examination and copying of 
any records that are required under the conditions of an NPDES permit to discharge 
stormwater. 


 







 7


(c) The Fayette County Stormwater Management and and/or Environmental Health 
Department(s) shall have the right to set up on any property or facility such devices as are 
necessary in the opinion of the Fayette County Stormwater Management and and/or 
Environmental Health Department(s) to conduct monitoring and/or sampling of flow 
discharges. 


 
(d) The Fayette County Stormwater Management and and/or Environmental Health 


Department(s) may require the owner or operator to install monitoring equipment and 
perform monitoring as necessary, and make the monitoring data available to the Fayette 
County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s). This 
sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper 
operating condition by the owner or operator at his/her own expense.  All devices used to 
measure flow and quality shall be calibrated to ensure their accuracy.  


 
(e) Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the property or facility to 


be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the owner or operator at the 
written or oral request of the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or 
Environmental Health Department(s) and shall not be replaced.  The costs of clearing such 
access shall be borne by the owner. 


 
(f) Unreasonable delays in allowing the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or 


Environmental Health Department(s) access to a facility is a violation of this ordinance.  
 


(g) If the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) 
has been refused access to any part of the premises from which stormwater is discharged, 
and the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health 
Department(s) is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation 
of this ordinance, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine 
inspection and sampling program designed to verify compliance with this ordinance or any 
order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety, environment and 
welfare of the community, then the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or 
Environmental Health Department(s) may seek issuance of a search warrant from any court 
of competent jurisdiction.  


 


Section 8-406.  Notification of Accidental Discharges and Spills. 
 
Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any owner, operator, and/or person responsible 
for a facility, activity or owner, operation and/or person responsible, has information of any known or 
suspected release of any non-stormwater discharges from that facility or operation that may result in 
an illicit discharge into the county’s MS4 and/or state waters, said person shall take all necessary steps 
to ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup of such release so as to minimize the effects of the 
discharge.  
 
Said person shall notify the authorized enforcement agency in person or by phone, facsimile or in 
person no later than 24 hours of the nature, quantity and time of occurrence of the discharge. If the 
discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or industrial establishment, the owner 
and/or operator of such facility, activity, or operation shall also retain an on-site written record of the 
discharge and the actions taken to prevent its recurrence. Such records shall be retained for at least 
three years. The owner and/or operator shall also take immediate steps to ensure no recurrence of the 
discharge or spill. 
 







 8


In the event of such a release of hazardous materials, emergency response agencies and/or other 
appropriate agencies shall be immediately notified. 
 
Failure to provide notification of a release as provided above is a violation of this ordinance. 
 
Section 8-407.  Violations, Enforcement and Penalties. 


 


(a) Violations. It shall be unlawful for any owner and/or person to violate any provision or fail to 
comply with any of the requirements of this ordinance.  Any person who has violated or 
continues to violate the provisions of this ordinance, may be subject to enforcement actions 
outlined in this section or may be restrained by injunction or otherwise abated in a manner 
provided by law. 
 
In the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) is 
authorized to enter upon the subject private property, without giving prior notice, to take any 
and all measures necessary to abate the violation and/or restore the property.  The Fayette 
County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) are authorized 


to seek costs of the abatement as outlined in Section 8-407D. 
 


(b) Notice-of-Violation.  Whenever the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department 
and/or Environmental Health Department(s) find that a violation of this ordinance has 
occurred, the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health 
Department(s) may order compliance by written Notice-of-Violation.   
 
The Notice-of-Violation shall contain: 
 
(i) The name and address of the alleged violator; 


 
(ii) The address when available or a description of the building structure or land upon 


which the violation is occurring or has occurred; 
 
(iii) A statement specifying the nature of the violation; 
 
(iv) A description of the remedial measures necessary to restore compliance with this 


ordinance and a time schedule for the completion of such remedial action; and, 
 


  Such notice may require without limitation: 
 


(i) The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting; 
 


(ii) The elimination of illicit discharges and illegal connections; 
 
(iii) That violating discharges, or operations shall cease and desist; 
 
(iv) The abatement of remediation of stormwater pollution or contamination hazards and 


the restoration of any affected property; 
 
(v) Payment of costs to cover administrative, abatement, and remediation costs; and 
 
(vi) The implementation of pollution prevention practices. 







 9


 
(c) Abatement Measures.  If the violation has not been corrected pursuant to the requirements set 


forth in the Notice-of-Violation, then representatives of the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) may enter upon the subject private 
property and are authorized to take any and all measures necessary to abate the violation 
and/or restore the property.  It shall be unlawful for any person, owner, agent or person in 
possession of any premises to refuse to allow the government agency or designated contractor 
to enter upon the premises for the purposes set forth above. 
 


(d) Costs of Abatement of the Violation.  Within 30 days after abatement of the violation, the 
owner of the property will be notified of the cost of abatement, including administrative costs.  
The Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) 
may recover attorney’s fees, court costs, and other expenses associated with enforcement of 
this ordinance, including sampling and monitoring expenses.  The property owner may file a 
written protest objecting to the assessment or to the amount of the assessment within 15 days 
of such notice.  Written appeals shall be made to the Board of Commissioners or a party 
appointed thereby.  If the amount due is not paid within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
notice, or if an appeal is taken, within thirty (30) days after a decision on said appeal, the 
charges shall become a special assessment against the property and shall constitute a lien on 
the property for the amount of the assessment. 
 


(e) Citations. For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, and/or in the event the 
alleged violator fails to take the remedial measures set forth in the Notice-of-Violation or 
otherwise fails to cure the violations described therein within ten days, or such greater period 
as the Fayette County Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) 
shall deem appropriate, the Fayette County Engineering and/or Environmental Health 
Department may issue a citation to the alleged violator requiring such person to appear in the 
State Court for Fayette County to answer charges for such violation.  Upon conviction, such 
person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or imprisonment for 60 days or both.  
Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation shall occur shall constitute a 
separate offense. 
 


(f) Violations Deemed a Public Nuisance.  In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties 
provided, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of 
this ordinance is a threat to public, health, safety, welfare, and environment and is declared 
and deemed a nuisance, and may be abated by the injunctive or other equitable relief as 
provided by law. 
 


(g) Remedies Not Exclusive. The remedies listed in this ordinance are not exclusive or any other 
remedies available under any applicable Federal, State or local law and the Fayette County 
Stormwater Management and/or Environmental Health Department(s) may seek cumulative 
remedies. 
 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed 
by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 







 10


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is 
hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent 
upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 
Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall 
remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 
hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 
specified herein. 
 


It is so ordained this 22nd day of March, 2012. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
                                 Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 


 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 
 
 


 





		Stormwater- Article 13 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Stormwater- Article 13 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-02 approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement.


Proposed amendments to Chapter 8, Fayette County Development Regulations Article VI - Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement 


include changing the administrating department to Stormwater Management from Engineering, incorporating technical standards, 


rearranging content and adding definitions to simplify use and understanding, and clarifying submission requirements.  At the Board of 


Commissioners Public Hearing/Workshop held March 8, 2012, staff was instructed to place the proposed amendments on the Board of 


Commissioners' March 22, 2012 Agenda.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-02 approving proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, 


Development Regulations, by amending Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







Section 8-176.  STATE OF GEORGIA;  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


ORDINANCE NO. 2012-02 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 8, THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 


REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE VI TREE RETENTION, 


PROTECTION AND REPLACEMENT; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO 


PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 


PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY 


LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the ethical 


standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall be 


improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


  


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 


Section 1.  That Article VI of Chapter 8 Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette 


County, Georgia is hereby amended to read as follows: 


 


 
ARTICLE VI.  TREE RETENTION, PROTECTION AND REPLACEMENT 


(Came into existence on 12/14/89) 


 
Sec. 8-176.  Introduction.   


 


It is hereby determined that: 


 
Trees are a valuable asset to the rural/urban environment of Fayette County and can generate such 


benefits as:  the purification of air; moderation of the microclimate; reduction of noise and glare; 
conservation of energy in terms of heating and cooling; prevention of soil erosion; reduced stormwater 


management costs; minimization of flood potential; improved water quality; enhancement and 


stabilization of property values; increased aesthetics; and preservation of the rural character of 


unincorporated Fayette County. 


 


Therefore, Fayette County adopts this ordinance to provide requirements to protect the rural and wooded 


character of unincorporated Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 


development occurs. 


 


 


 







Sec. 8-177.  Definitions. 


 
Certified Arborist.  An arborist certified by the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA).   


 


Clearing.  An activity that removes or disturbs the vegetative cover including trees. 


 


Critical Root Zone (CRZ). The minimum area beneath a tree which must be left undisturbed.  The 


critical root zone shall be equal to one and one half (1.5) feet of radial distance for every inch of the tree’s 


DBH, with a minimum of eight feet.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


Deciduous Tree.  A tree that annually loses leaves. 


 


Dripline.  A line on the ground established by a vertical plane extending from a tree’s outermost  branch 


tips down to the ground; i.e., the line enclosing the area directly beneath the tree’s crown from which 


rainfall would drip. 


 


Diameter-at-breast-height DBH.  Standard measure of existing tree size and is the trunk diameter 


measured in inches at height of four and one-half (4½) feet above the ground.  If a tree splits into multiple 


trunks below four and one-half (4 ½) feet, then the trunk is measured at its most narrow point beneath the 


split.  A tree that splits into multiple trunk above 4 ½ feet is measured as a single tree at 4 ½ feet. 


 


Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan.  A plan required by the Erosion, Sedimentation 


and Pollution Control Act. O.C.G.A., 12-7-1 et seq., that includes, at a minimum, protections at least as 


stringent as this ordinance. 


 


Evergreen Tree.  Tree that retains its foliage throughout the year. 


 


Existing Density Unit (EDU).  A tree density unit assigned for the preservation of existing trees that will 


remain on site and protected during construction and where one (1) EDU is equivalent to one (1) inch of 


DBH when the DBH is a minimum size of four (4) inches.  
 


Land-disturbing activity.  Any land change which may result in soil erosion from water or wind and the 


movement of sediment into State water or onto lands within the State, including, but not limited to, 


clearing, dredging, grading, excavating, transporting and filling of land, other than federal lands. 


 


Land Disturbance Permit.  Authorization to conduct a land-disturbing activity under the provisions of 


Article IX, Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control.  


 


Landscaping.  Any additions to the natural features of a plot of ground to restore construction 


disturbance and to make an area more attractive. 


 


Landscape Areas.  An area set aside for the installation and maintenance of ornamental planting 


materials. 


 


Overstory (Canopy) Tree.   Any tree that, under normal forest conditions, will compose the top layer or 


canopy of vegetation and generally will reach a mature height of greater than 40 feet. Examples include: 


Oak, Maple, Elm, Bald Cypress, Cryptomeria. 


 


Replacement Density Unit (RDU).  A tree density unit assigned to a new tree planted to achieve the site 


density unit (SDU) and is equivalent to the number of inches of trunk diameter measured at six (6) inches 


above the ground.   







Shrub.  A plant with persistent woody stems and a relatively low growth habit, distinguished from a tree 


by producing several basal stems instead of a single trunk. 


 
Site.  That portion of a tract of land that will be dedicated to a proposed development, including the land 


containing trees that will be counted toward satisfying the requirements of these provisions. 


 


Site Density Unit (SDU).  The minimum number of tree density units that must be achieved on a non-


residential site after development and is equal to Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 


Units (RDU.)  


 


Specimen Tree or Stand.  Any tree or grouping of trees that is determined to be of high value and 


qualifies for special consideration for preservation because of its species, size, or historical significance.   


 


Tree.  A self-supporting woody perennial plant that, at maturity, has one (1) or more stems or trunks that 


attain a diameter of at least three (3) inches; a more or less definitely formed crown of foliage; and a 


height of 10 feet or more. 
 
Tree Density Units (TDU).  A unit of measurement for tree density based on the diameter of the tree.  


 


Tree Protection Area.  A barrier constructed around trees at construction sites sufficient to prevent 


damage or injury to tree trunks, limbs, and roots. The tree protection area shall be either the dripline of the 


tree or the critical root zone of a tree or clusters of trees to be retained, whichever is greater.  


 


Understory Tree.  A tree that, under normal forest conditions, grows to maturity beneath overstory trees 


and will generally reach a mature height of at least 10 feet, but less than 40 feet.  Examples include 


dogwood, red bud, fringe tree, lusterleaf holly, and red cedar. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


Utility. Public or private water or sewer piping systems, water or sewer pumping stations, electric power 


lines, fuel pipelines, telephone lines or other utilities identified by a local government. 


 


Sec. 8-178. General Provisions 
 


(a) Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish minimum requirements for tree 


retention, protection and replacement in Fayette County and to protect the rural and wooded 


character of Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 


development occurs.  It is the intent of this ordinance that all site planning and design for 


development of land be undertaken with a survey of trees on the property and that the grading, 


final placement of buildings, structures, and roads, utilities, and other features minimizes the 


removal of existing trees, and insures aesthetic replacement and distribution. 


 


(b) Applicability.  This ordinance shall apply to any activity that requires or precedes submittal of a 


Preliminary Plat, an Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plan, or a site plan as defined 


in Article II.  Non-residential subdivisions without common infrastructure are still required to 


submit a TPP but are not required to submit TDUs. 


   


(c) Exemptions.  


 


(i) Removal of trees determined to be dead, diseased, or infested as determined by the Georgia 


Forestry Commission or a Certified Arborist and approved by the Stormwater Management 


Department. 


 







(ii) Construction of single-family or two-family residential structures, accessory structures, or 


any minor land-disturbing activities. 


 


(iii) Orchards and tree nurseries in active commercial operation. 


 


(iv) Agricultural operations as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243.(5). 


 


(v) Public roads, public utilities (as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243(9-11)), and 


telecommunication towers.  


 


(vi) Commercial forestry operations, including timber harvesting. 


 (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
(d) Designation of Ordinance. Administrator.  The Fayette County Stormwater Management 


Department shall administer this ordinance. 


 
(e) Compatibility with Other Regulations. This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other 


ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law.  


The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, 


regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions 


different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, 


whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher protective standards for human health or 


the environmental shall control. 


 
(f) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this 


ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not 


affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of 


this ordinance. 


 
(g) Effective Date. This Ordinance becomes effective upon adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


(h) Technical Standards.  Standards for plant selection and installation listed below are incorporated by 


reference: 


(i) “American Standard for Nursery Stock”  (ANSI Z60.1-2004) 


(ii) “Manual for Woody Landscape Plants”  (Michael Dirr, 2009, Stipes)” 


(iii) “Principles and Practices of Planting Trees and Shrubs”(Watson and Himelick, 1997, ISA)  


(iv) “American National Standards for Tree Care Operations” (ANSI A300) 


(v) University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for 


Georgia 


 


Sec. 8-179.  Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement Requirements.  
For all sites with three (3) acres or less, all trees used in the SDU calculation shall be individually 


inventoried.   For all sites over three (3) acres industry standard sampling methods may be used to prepare 


a tree survey  when trees are of such density to make individual tree identification impractical.  In such 


cases the tree surveyor shall show tree stands and provide estimates of size and species on the Tree 


Protection Plan. 







 
(a) Site Density Requirements. The required tree density for each non-residential site is referred to 


as the Site Density Unit (SDU).  Each property subject to this article shall have a minimum 


required SDU based on total number of disturbed acres on the project site. 


 


(i) The total SDU required equals Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 


Units (RDU). 


 


(ii) Property subject to this Article that is greater than or equal to three (3) acres shall have or 


exceed an average SDU of 100 TDU’s per acre. 


 


(iii) Property subject to this Article that is less than three (3) acres shall have or exceed an 


average SDU of fifty (50) TDU’s per acre. 


 


(iv) Credit will be given to trees retained on a property having a DBH of four (4) inches or 


more. 


 


(v) At least 50 percent of the EDU’s per acre must be located outside of any zoning or 


watershed buffers as referenced in Articles V and VII. 


 


(vi) Palm trees are not acceptable for SDU credit. 


 


(b) Specimen Trees. 


 


(i) Criteria for determination of specimen trees or stands are as follows: 


  


1) Any deciduous canopy tree where the DBH equals or exceeds 24 inches. 


   


2) Any evergreen canopy tree where the DBH equals or exceeds 30 inches. 


 


3) Any understory tree where the DBH equals or exceeds ten (10) inches. 


 


4) Any tree which has significant historical value and can be documented through 


historical records or otherwise. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


(ii) Removal.  Any specimen tree removed without prior approval of the Stormwater 


Management Department will be replaced by trees equaling two (2) times an inch-for-


inch replacement of the tree removed.  Size alone will determine whether a tree was of 


specimen quality if the tree is removed without approval and there is no evidence of its 


condition.  Such action may result in a stop work order issued by the Stormwater 


Management Department. 


  


 Written justification must be given for any specimen tree designated for removal.  The 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may require additional information 


including, but not limited to, a certified arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s viability and 


anticipated life span. 


 


 Any specimen tree may be removed if it is shown that at least one of the following 


conditions is met: 


 







1) The location of the tree prevents the opening of reasonable and necessary vehicular 


traffic lanes. 


 


2) The location of the tree prevents the construction of utility lines or drainage facilities 


which may not feasibly be relocated. 


 


3) The location of the tree prevents reasonable access to the property, if no alternate 


exists.  


 


4) The tree is diseased, dead, or dying to the point that repair or restoration is not 


practical or the disease may be transmitted to other trees.   


 


5) There is no reasonable assurance that if the tree is saved with proper construction 


precautions, it will continue to live as an asset to the site. 


 


(iii)  Preservation.  All reasonable efforts should be made to preserve specimen trees and 


incorporate them into the design of the project.  Specimen trees saved by a specifically 


designed feature of the building, hardscape, or utilities shall be given EDU credit of two 


(2) inches per inch DBH. 


(c) Replacement Tree Requirements. 


All trees selected for replacement density units must meet the following requirements: 


(i)      Trees must be free of disease, injury, or infestation, and must be ecologically compatible 


with the specifically intended growing area (see Section 8-184), and planted in 


accordance with standards established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 


(ii) At a minimum, four (4) species mixture of different trees, with at least three (3) being 


deciduous hardwoods should be utilized. (Ord. No. 2000-02).  


(iii) No more than thirty (30) percent of replacement trees may be of a single species.   


(iv) A fifty percent mix of overstory and understory trees shall be maintained.  See Sec, 8-


184. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(v)   Trees shall have a minimum caliper requirement of two and one half (2½) inches in 


diameter as measured at six (6) inches above the ground at time of planting.  


(vi)   All trees planted to fulfill the replacement tree requirements shall be in place before a 


Certificate of Occupancy is granted.  In the event that the requirements of this Article 


cannot be met at the time a Certificate of Occupancy is otherwise granted, refer to 


“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-162 Performance Surety, in these Development 


Regulations.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(vii)   All tree planted under the requirements of this Article which do not survive for 24 


months after issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy will be replaced as a condition of 


occupancy.  Trees shall be bonded via a maintenance agreement in the amount of (100%) 


of their replacement cost.  Bonds will be released after the 24 month period has passed, 


and the health of the trees have been certified and accepted by the County.  Refer to 







“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-163 General Maintenance, in these 


Development Regulations. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(viii) See Section 8-160.d.2 and Section 8-161 for suggested tree species.  For additional tree 


species, especially understory (small) trees, see University of Georgia Cooperative 


Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for Georgia.   


(d) Tree Protection Requirements.   


(i) A tree protection area shall be maintained around all trees and stands of trees to be 


retained throughout the duration of construction by tree protection fencing.  


 


(ii)   The tree protection area of stand-alone trees and stands of trees shall be marked with 


standard tree protection fencing (orange) or chain-link fencing and “Tree Protection 


Area” signs.  At least two (2) “Tree Protection Area” signs shall be posted at each 


individual tree protection area. (Ord. No 2000-02) 


 


(iii) All tree protection fencing shall be inspected for proper installation by the Stormwater 


Management Department during the initial erosion and sediment control inspection.   


 


(iv) During subdivision street construction, land disturbance allowed by a development 


permit shall be limited to areas needed for street right-of-way, drainage easements, 


erosion and sediment control practices and utilities.  All other areas shall remain 


undisturbed for tree protection purposes. 


 


(v) If utilities must run through the tree protection area and the running of those utilities will 


encroach into the critical root zone CRZ of any trees to be saved, the utility must be 


tunneled at a depth of 24 inches.  When feasible, utilities will run along streets, roadways, 


driveways, or sidewalks.  Reasonable efforts shall be made to save as many trees as 


possible.  (Ord. NO. 2000-02) 


 


(vi) If it is determined that irreparable damage has occurred to a tree or trees within a 


designated tree protection area, as determined by the Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Department, the Georgia Forestry Commission, or a Certified Arborist, it 


shall be the responsibility of the developer/builder to remove and replace the tree or trees 


and guarantee survival after the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy as references in 


Section 8-179.c.vii and Article V. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


(e) Tree Protection Plan.  
 


(i) Procedures. 


 


1) The TPP shall be submitted with the Preliminary Plat, Erosion, Sedimentation and 


Pollution Control Plan or the Site Plan, whichever is the first submittal required by 


Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department. 


 


2) The Tree Protection Plan shall be prepared by either a licensed Landscape Architect 


or Forester; Certified Arborist, or other licensed professional of similar design 


discipline licensed in Georgia. 


 







3) The Stormwater Management Department shall have a maximum of 14 calendar days 


from the submittal date, or each re-submittal date, for plan review.  If the plan is not 


approved a deficiency checklist will be submitted back to the applicant.  


 
(ii) Submittal. 


  


 The Tree Protection Plan shall be submitted on a scale of no less than one (1) inch to 100 


feet and shall include project name, design professional’s name and contact information, 


north arrow, graphic scale, and date.  The plan should clearly show and label the 


following: 


 


1) Tree save areas noting the location, size, DBH, dripline, CRZ, and species name 


(common name) of each tree that will be retained to fulfill the SDU requirements.  


Five or more trees whose dripline and CRZ combine into one tree protection area 


may be outlined as a group with the exception of specimen trees. 


 


2) Summary table listing the DBH and species name of each RDU and EDU tree used to 


obtain the required SDU under “Notes.” 


 
3) If a group of trees is outlined on the plan as a tree save area, include a summary table 


listing the size, DBH and species name of each tree within that group under “Notes.” 


 
4) Location of all new replacement trees including species name and DBH that fulfill 


RDU requirements. 


 
5) Location of any specimen tree designated in a tree protection area including the 


DBH, CRZ and species name even if contained in a group.  If construction is limited 


to streets, drainage easements and utilities the TPP only needs to show all specimen 


trees located within 100 feet of the centerline of any right-of-way, or drainage/utility 


easements. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
6) Location of any specimen trees designated for removal during construction including 


the size, DBH and species name.  See Sec. 8-181. 


 
7) Location, depth and height of all existing and proposed utility lines that could impact 


any trees. 


 
8) Boundaries of property, buffer and landscaped areas, buildings and structures, vehicle 


use areas, and other impervious areas. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
9) Calculations for meeting all required site density units under “Notes.”  If a scientific 


method is used to determine the site density units, label all sample areas and provide 


a listing of trees by size and species as based on sampling method requirements. 


 
10) Under “Notes” state the following:  “No land disturbance, construction processes, or 


storage of equipment or materials shall take place within a designated tree protection 


area in order to prevent direct physical root damage, indirect root damage, and trunk 


and crown damage. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


 







Sec. 8-180.  Appeals.   
 


Any applicant who is aggrieved by any decision of the Fayette County Stormwater Management 


Department relating to the application of this ordinance shall have the right to appeal as provided under 


Article IX of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  


 


Sec. 8-181. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties. 


 
Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements of an approved 


stormwater management application may be subject to the enforcement actions outlines in this Section.  


Any such action or inaction, which is continuous with respect to time, is deemed to be a public nuisance 


and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief.  The imposition of any of the penalties 


described below shall not prevent such equitable relief. 


 


(a) Notice-of-Violation.  If the Stormwater Management Department determines that an applicant or 


other responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an 


approved Stormwater Management Plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a 


written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person.  Where a person is 


engaged in activity covered by this ordinance without having first secured a permit, the notice of 


violation shall be served on the owner of the responsible person in charge of the activity being 


conducted on the site.  


 


The notice-of-violation shall contain: 


 


(i) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person; 


 


(ii) The address or description of the site upon which the violation is occurring; 


 


(iii) A statement specifying the nature of the violation; 


 


(iv) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into 


compliance with the permit, the Stormwater Management Action Plan or this ordinance 


and the date for the completion of such remedial action; and, 


 


(v) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom 


the notice of violation is directed. 


 
(b) Penalties. In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been 


completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of 


the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice 


of violation was directed.  Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the 


following penalties, the Stormwater Management Department shall first notify the applicant or 


other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable 


opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an 


immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24-hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure 


such violation.  In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation 


after such notice and cure period, the Stormwater Management Department may take one or more 


of the following action or impose any one or more of the following penalties:  


 


 







(i) Stop Work Order.  The Stormwater Management Department may issue a stop work order 


that shall be served on the applicant or other responsible person.  The stop work order 


shall remain in effect until the applicant other responsible person has taken the remedial 


measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or 


violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified 


to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures 


to cure such violation or violations. 


 


(ii) Withhold Certificate-of-Occupancy.  The Stormwater Management Department may 


recommend to the Fayette County Permits and Inspection Department refuse to issue a 


Certificate-of-Occupancy for the building other improvements constructed or being 


constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the 


remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations 


described therein. 


 


(iii) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit.  The Stormwater Management 


Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing the land-development 


project.  A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or 


other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice-of-


violation(s) or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit 


may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the Stormwater Management Department may 


deem necessary) to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary 


remedial measures to cure such violations. 


 


(c) Citations.   For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the event the applicant 


or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures set forth in previously issued 


notice-of-violations(s) or otherwise fails to cure the violations within ten days, the Stormwater 


Management Department may issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible person, 


requiring such person to appear in State Court of Fayette County to answer charges of such 


violation.  Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or 


imprisonment for 60 days or both.  Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation 


shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.   


 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 


paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by 


the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 


allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 


severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby 


further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 


law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any 


other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 


whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or 


decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that 


such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 







render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 


sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, 


constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 


hereby expressly repealed. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified 


herein. 


 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 22nd DAY OF March, 2012. 


 


  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


 ________________________________________ 


                                  Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 
 


 


 


______________________________ 


    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		Stormwater- Article 6 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Stormwater- Article 6 Backup

		Article 6 - Tree RPR marked up vtb.pdf

		Art 6- Tree RPR Clean Copy












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


March 22, 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


PUBLIC HEARING:


1. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-07 pertaining to the
“Fayette County 2011 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including
Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital Improvements
Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2012 - FY2016)”, and
authorization to transmit said document to the Atlanta Regional Commission.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


2. Approval of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-05 for the purpose of
discontinuing Fayette County’s role in receiving customer complaints from
subscribers of Comcast Cable.


3. Approval of staff’s request to adopt policies and procedures for purchases
that use federal grant funds.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-01 approving
proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter
8. Development Regulations, by amending Article II. Nonresidential
Construction Permit and Compliance Procedures.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-02 approving
proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development
Regulations, by amending Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection and
Replacement.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-03, approving
proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development
Regulations, by amending Article X, Dam and Impoundment Design
Specifications and Permit Requirements.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-04 approving
proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development
Regulations, by amending Article XI, Groundwater Recharge Area Protection.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March 22, 2012
Page Number 2


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-05 approving proposed amendments to Fayette


County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Article XIII, Illicit Discharge and Illegal
Connections.


9. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessors’ Office.


10. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division
by $11,783.60 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


11. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Gasoline Vendor Budgeting Category for the Criminal
Investigations Division by $950.00 for reimbursement received from the US Marshals Service for gasoline
incurred for the vehicle which was purchased for Fayette County.


12. Approval of the February 23, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of staff’s request for authorization to engage the Benefits Law Group for legal work requirements
associated with the implementation of the Early Retirement Plan, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the
Engagement Letter.


14. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-08 modifying the County’s Defined Benefit Retirement
Plan to accommodate the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program; and authorization for the Chairman
to sign any associated agreements contingent upon review by the County Attorney.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of Connie Biemiller Thomas’ request that Fayette County transmit a letter to the Fulton County
Board of Commissioners urging Fulton County to take every measure possible to not renew Philip Service
Corporation’s permit that would allow use of Futon County’s sewer system for discharged wastewater.


16. Consideration of Commissioner Allen McCarty’s request to halt plans for construction of Phase III of the West
Fayetteville Bypass and to begin construction of the East Fayetteville Bypass.


17. Consideration of reappointment of Darryl Hicks to Post 4 of the Fayette County Recreation Commission to a
four-year term that will commence on April 1, 2012 and will expire on March 31, 2016.


18. Consideration of a resolution to provide for the issuance of Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012A, and Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B, and for other
related purposes.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


STAFF REPORT:







Agenda
March 22, 2012
Page Number 3


19. Public Works Director Phil Mallon will update the Board concerning Transportation SPLOST projects in
Fayette County.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Consideration of Commissioner Allen McCarty's request to halt plans for construction of Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass and to 


begin construction of the East Fayetteville Bypass.


In 2004, the citizens of Fayette County approved a one-percent (1%) Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) for the purpose 


of funding transportation projects within the County.  Among those projects were two roads commonly referred to as the West Fayetteville 


Bypass and the East Fayetteville Bypass. 


 


At the Board's Retreat on March 10, staff presented the Board of Commissioners with current revenues available for what is known as 


321 SPLOST Funds, indicating that sufficient SPLOST funds for construction of both Phase 3 of the West Fayetteville Bypass and the 


East Fayetteville Bypass are not available. Consensus on how to proceed could not be reached, since only four of the County 


Commissioners were present. 


 


Based on the discussion that took place and the absence of one of the Commissioners at the Retreat on March 10, Commissioner 


McCarty has asked that this issue be brought back to the Board for further discussion, direction to staff on how to proceed, and a 


possible vote.


Consideration of Commissioner Allen McCarty's request to halt plans for construction of Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass and to 


begin construction of the East Fayetteville Bypass.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 22, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of the disposition of tax refund requests as recommended by the Tax Assessors' Office.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests.


Approval of the disposition of tax refund requests as recommended by the Tax Assessors' Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012





		Tax Assessors- Refunds Agenda Request File.pdf

		Tax Assessors- Refunds Backup

		Pending












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Connie Biemiller Thomas


Consideration of Connie Biemiller Thomas' request that Fayette County transmit a letter to the Fulton County Board of Commissioners 


urging Fulton County to take every measure possible to not renew Philip Service Corporation's permit that would allow use of Fulton 


County's sewer system for discharged wastewater.


In 2006, citizens in north Fayette County and south Fulton County started smelling "onion-like" odors that contributed to syndromes such 


as vomiting, nausea, and respiratory problems.  The source of the odor was discovered as chemical releases from the Philip Services 


Corporation (PSC) waste treatment plan, located on Georgia Highway 92 in Fulton County near Fairburn.   


 


This odor and related medical concerns prompted strong citizen demand for the Fayette County Board of Commissioners to intervene.  


The citizens formed the South Fulton / Fayette Community Task Force which was headed up by Chairman Connie Biemiller Thomas.  


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners and county staff pressed upon Fulton County to take appropriate measures to protect the 


citizens, and to also protect Fayette County's water sources that were also potentially affected. 


 


Philip Services Corporation, in agreement with Fulton County, ceased much of its operations in 2006 when it chose not to renew a permit 


that would allow use of the Fulton County's sewer system to discharge wastewater, however, the company is now eligible to apply for a 


new permit with an understanding to resume its former operations.  


 


Connie Biemiller is requesting that Fayette County use its influence to stop the permit from being issued to Philip Services Corporation.


Approval of Connie Biemiller Thomas' request that Fayette County transmit a letter to the Fulton County Board of Commissioners urging 


Fulton County to take every measure possible to not renew Philip Service Corporation's permit that would allow use of Fulton County's 


sewer system for discharged wastewater.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 22, 2012



















Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 7


  


  


  


  


  


    
  
PUBLIC COMMENT:
Members of the public are allowed up to five minutes each to address the Board on issues
of concern other than those items which are on this evening’s agenda.  


Connie Biemiller: Connie Biemiller, 480 Lees Lake Road, Fayetteville remarked on the
very strong onion odor that was occurring in her area.  She said she was representing the
deeply concerned citizens of Fayette and South Fulton Counties.  She said they had all
recently been made aware that the very strong onion odor in their area that everyone had
been smelling was actually a toxic chemical known as Propyl Mercaptan which was used
in pesticides.  She said most of them had no idea that a toxic waste plant was actually in
their neighborhood, however, that all made sense to them now.  She said their animals
were no longer wanting to go outside for any length of time and several of the pets had







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 8


suddenly died in the past few weeks due to bleeding disorders.  She said they themselves
were having nose bleeds, severe headaches, nausea, increased allergy symptoms and
heightened asthmatic responses.  She also added that before she left for the meeting
tonight she learned that some of the children had blood in their urine.  


Ms. Biemiller said she was a clinical social worker and worked with people on a daily basis
and could attest to the fact that this was not sympathetic hysteria by any means.  She said
her community only began to share their stories on Monday afternoon one by one during
an impromptu petition signing.  She said more than 250 signatures were collected within
a four hour period and she was presented this petition to the Board tonight.  A copy of the
petition, identified as “Attachment No. 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  She said the citizens were asking the Commissioners to be advocates for this
community.  She said they were asking the Commissioners to band with them to help and
guide their neighborhood’s safe return to a healthy environment where their children could
run and play outside and where everybody could enjoy a quality of life that was the right
of every citizen.  She said she was proud to call Fayette County her home and truly felt this
had been one of the greatest blessings of her life to live here.  She said she would do
everything in her power to make sure that this feeling remained within her and that of her
neighbors.  


Ms. Biemiller said the citizens were specifically requesting that the Fayette Commissioners
advocate for the citizens in the following ways: (1) conduct an independent study of the
nearby streams, soil and air near the Phillips Service Facility; (2) open the Health
Department to begin treating and documenting illnesses relating to the toxic incident; (3)
hold meetings with South Fulton Commissioners and State Representatives to ensure that
Phillips Service Corporation was disposing of toxic substances in a lawful and safe
manner; (4) conduct further research as to the appropriateness of having such a waste site
in a residential community; and finally (5) follow up by implementing a meeting with Fayette
County residents to inform them of the above results and lead the citizens with further
advocacy to the State officials.  She said they would like to request that this meeting take
place no later than July 28, 2006 due to the immediatecy of this matter.  She said she was
just informed before this meeting that there would be a Town Hall meeting scheduled at
Bethany United Methodist Church on Wednesday, July 19th at 7:00 p.m. and various
government agencies would be involved in that meeting.  She said the citizens would like
to thank the Board in advance for its recognition of this urgent matter and its courage and
leadership in the days ahead.  


Earl Hindman: Earl Hindman said he was the Vice President of the Fife Community
Association.  He expressed concern over the strong odor coming from a nearby plant.  He
said this was not the first time that they have had to deal with this plant.  He said in 1992
the Fife Community Association was formed specifically to fight the odors coming from this
plant.  He said at that time it was a smell of very bad open sewer and it permeated







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 9


everything.  He said the odor got into a locked car, the seat fabric and even the clothes in
their closets.  He said they fought the personnel at this plant and at first they thumbed their
noses at the citizens.  He said there were even people in the community who had to up and
leave their homes because the odor absolutely permeated everything.  He said their lives
were ruined.  He remarked in April, 1992 they retained a law firm to help them in this fight.
He said to begin with the plant had an open tank and they were processing the grease from
restaurants.  He said there were also septic tank trucks.  He said the odor was really bad.
He remarked now the plant was licensed by the State to handle industrial waste.  He said
through negotiations with the attorneys they did put domes over the tanks and the odor got
a little better.  He said from time to time this odor occurs and now it had spread to an area
of approximately 200 square miles.  


Mr. Hindman remarked that the dome on a tanker truck was approximately 13 feet tall.  He
questioned if the lid on a tanker truck was raised and a little vapor escaped would the smell
actually last for four weeks.  He said the citizens in the area began smelling this odor in the
middle of June.  He said their community had initiated the calls to the E.P.A. and E.P.D.
He said they had called every day and sometimes several times every day.  He said the
residents were told by plant officials that they had gotten a truck from Alabama.  He said
when the truck was opened, it smelled bad and the plant officials closed the truck back up
and sent it back to Alabama.  He said the citizens had watched trucks coming in and out
of this plant day and night.  He said they had documentation of the personnel washing
down the parking lot, washing down the trucks and washing the trees.  He said he had
pictures of all of that taking place.  He said if this was just a little vapor, then why were they
washing everything.  He said he also had pictures of the personnel scooping up dirt around
the parking lot and putting it in several dump trucks and hauling it away. He said one of the
community members actually followed the dump trucks and now they knew where they
were taking it.  He asked the Board to think about this and he felt the citizens did not have
the whole story.  He said the citizens felt like there had been a massive spill.  He said now
that Lake Horton had been built, Whitewater Creek was the drinking water for the citizens.
He said from what he had seen on television, the citizens were not getting the whole story.


Dennis Chase: Dennis Chase, 290 Crabapple Road, Fayetteville said he was the
President of the Line Creek Homeowners Association.  He remarked on several soil
samplings that had been taken above and below the sewage treatment plant during the last
couple of years.  He said he had been involved in sampling along Whitewater Creek in this
part of Fayette County and South Fulton County since the Spring of 2004.  He said this had
come up because the Atlanta Regional Commission was coming down to hold a public
hearing for Fayette County for a violation of the total maximum daily load for Whitewater
Creek for sediments.  He said he had sampled above and below this sewage treatment
plant and there was a confirmation of what the State had found and what Fulton County
had found as well and that was that the stream had been hit pretty hard at least
biologically.  He said he had also been doing on a very regular basis with sewage spills







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 10


from the Latham Road pump station which dumps into Trickum Creek.  He remarked that
Fayette County was receiving an awful lot of stuff from Clayton County and Fulton County.
He said Fayette County was being asked to fix problems that it did not create.  He said
during the Atlanta Regional Commission’s public meeting he asked the question what they
expected Fayette County to do about problems that were being created in South Fulton
County.  He said the A.R.C. said that Fayette County would have to firstly prove that other
counties were creating the problem. He said he presented his report to them proving this
situation.  He said the A.R.C. later told him that his report was better than anything they
had.  He said at the end of this meeting the A.R.C. representatives said if the City of
Fayetteville, Fayette County or any other government agency here has a problem with what
was going on, the Atlanta Regional Commission would step in and be a mediator.  He
remarked that the A.R.C. said they would hold the meetings, help find the answers and call
in whatever expertise was needed to do some of the very things that the Board was being
asked to do here tonight.  He felt this was the Board’s best option in addition to attending
the meetings and hearing what the citizens have to say.  He said Fayette County had put
a lot of money in the A.R.C. organization and the County should allow them to do some
good for it now.  He said the Board should asked the A.R.C. to step in and check on this
situation.  He said anything that had been done on this situation before now had run
directly into the Environmental Protection Division who was finding every possible reason
that it could not to do something.  He said this was the same thing that he had come up
against regarding the TMDL’s on Whitewater Creek and the violation of TMDL’s on the Flint
River coming out of Clayton County.  He reminded the Board about the issues that were
faced when the deicing spill occurred a few years ago.  He said at that point he and others
had tried to get the State to get the Airport to do samples of what was going on and they
wouldn’t even listen to them.  He said in both cases he had sampled the streams because
the E.P.D. would not.  He said he had found that there were some very severe problems
out there.  He said he was aware that these problems were there and the A.R.C. needed
to step in and help to bring in a consulting firm to demonstrate what had actually gone on.
He said yesterday he had spent some very tough hours at the site and walked through
some very difficult swamp area.  He said he did not see much of anything that could tell
anyone one way or another but notably what he did not see were the tracks of any animals.
He said he had been on sites that had been contaminated in the past and the animals in
many ways were a lot smarter than humans.  He said in these kinds of situations, animals
stay away.  He said the nearest he saw any deer tracks was approximately a quarter of a
mile to half a mile away and they were old tracks.  He said he was an experienced biologist
and when he sees no animals and no birds this tells him that everything that the Board was
hearing from the citizens tonight were absolutely right on target.  He said he would like to
encourage the Board to go to the A.R.C. and get them to step in, mediate with the County
and help resolve this situation.  


Commissioner Wells remarked that this problem had gone on for at least four weeks.  She
said everyone was aware that bureaucracy moves extremely slowly.  She asked if the
Board did go to the A.R.C. and had a mediator if that would give these citizens any type







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 11


of relief in a prompt manner.  She said this was her bigger concern.  She said this problem
could continue to go on and the people would still be suffering.  She asked how quickly the
Board could expect a response from the people that Mr. Chase was familiar with at the
A.R.C. 


Mr. Chase said he felt the Board might be able to get the individuals at the A.R. C. to move
to action but he could not.  He said he had spent a lot of years trying to get the E.P.D.,
E.P.A. and these other agencies to go in a direction and they would not move.  


Commissioner Wells said this was her concern.


Mr. Chase said the Board of Commissioners was in a position because Fayette County
was a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission.  He said Fayette County was getting
the raw end of the deal in this situation.  He said this County was getting all of this dumped
on it whether it be down Whitewater Creek, Line Creek, Morning Creek, Camp Creek and
coming down the Flint River.  He said this situation was being created by Fayette County’s
neighbors to the North and no one was stepping in to help the County.  


Commissioner Frady said he did not think anything would be wrong with appointing a
committee such as Water System Director Tony Parrott and Director of Environmental
Health Rick Fehr to contact the A.R.C. tomorrow and see if they could get something
started on this.  He said Commissioner Horgan was a member of the Fayette County Board
of Health and he had a report saying that the heavy air was just laying stagnant and the
wind had not shifted.  He said nobody knows if the wind would take this odor away.  He
said there would have to be people on this committee who have an understanding of these
types of things.  He said there were individuals at the University of Georgia right now who
have equipment who can nail down a particular matter down to parts per trillion and identify
what it was.  He said there was the technology to find out what this was.  He said even
yesterday he could smell it.  


Commissioner Horgan remarked that as part of the direction of the emergency
management agency was to tell people to pull their air conditioning filters out and clean
them.  He said there was material that could stick to the dirt within their filters.  He said this
would also include only opening windows at certain times.  He said he agreed with
Commissioner Wells that something needed to be done as soon as possible.  


Commissioner Wells recalled the contamination situation with Lake Edith.  She said the
E.P.D. was very slow to respond.  She said the County had approached the E.P.D.
repeatedly.  She said the County even had documentation that Lake Edith was
contaminated and it was a process that just went on and on forever and that was a fairly
isolated situation.  She asked if someone such as Pete Nelms from emergency
management could help in this process.







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 12


Chairman Dunn said he was the County’s representative on the A.R.C. and he felt getting
them to do anything would be very slow.  He said the County needed to take action as
soon as possible and there were a lot of ways to do this.  He felt the first step was to get
with the people who were responsible for this and that was the Fulton County Board of
Commissioners.  He said Fayette County needed to meet with them and review this
situation.  He said this plant was very close to Fayette County and all breezes in that area
blow South of the plant 365 days per year.  He said a lot needed to be done and making
false promises was not one of those.  He said he felt like Fulton County was not going to
do much about this because the situation did not really affect them.  He said Fayette
County was going to have to take action for them.


Commissioner Frady said he felt all of the individuals affected should get together.  He said
Tony Parrott and Rick Fehr should definitely be involved in this as well as Dennis Chase.


Chairman Dunn asked Captain Pete Nelms to give a brief summary of the situation.  He
noted that right now the County would still not have known anything about what was going
on if it was not for the Fayette County Public Safety officers gotten involved in this situation.
He said at least now citizens were getting information location wise and what the smell
actually is.  He said it should have actually been Fulton County who handled this situation
but Fayette County would continue to be involved.  


Captain Pete Nelms said he was the Emergency Management Coordinator for Fayette
County.  He said on June 30th Fayette County had sent an engine out to look for this odor
and they were unable to locate it.  He said on Friday some of the emergency management
staff drove up to S.R. 92 North.  He said for exact clarification the odor was approximately
one mile North of the County line on S.R. 92 and this was located in the unincorporated
Fulton County.  He said staff was able to locate the site and to obtain the data safety
sheets or the MSDS as it was referred to.  He said staff distributed that information to the
EMS system and contacted the local hospital here to give them heads up as to exactly
what they were dealing with in case any patients arrived at the hospital for treatment.  He
felt even more importantly than that was that staff had contacted Fulton County’s
emergency management and Fayette County staff had actually demanded that this
become a very high priority for them.  He said the emergency management agency did put
a lot of pressure on them.  He said they had sent representatives down there and got a lot
of things going.  He said they had received a lot of calls from the public as well.  He said
the emergency management agency up there had done quite a bit of work in this.  He
noted that a lot of air sampling had been done by E.P.A. and E.P.D. and a division of the
C.D.C. was also involved.  He said he also had a copy of that report.  He said there needed
to be a greater awareness of what goes on in certain parts of South Fulton County and how
this ultimately affects Fayette County and what exactly goes on in that facility.  


Captain Nelms remarked that as an EMS system did not transport nor did they respond to
any 911 emergency calls in unincorporated Fayette County for calls for service as a result







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 13


of this odor.  He noted that the hospital did see six individuals over the July 4th Holiday.  He
said they were evaluated and released and no one was admitted.  He said there was some
illness as a result of this situation.  


Chairman Dunn said it was his concern that some of the symptoms that Ms. Biemiller
described may be an indicator for something that might not be evident yet.  He said just
because a child might stop bleeding did not mean that what happened to them was not
going to have some repercussions later on.  He said he was an asthmatic most of his life
and anyone with Asthma did not need anything like this within twenty miles of them.  He
said this situation was really bad.  He said one of the things that needed to be pressed for
was an investigation and not just a bunch of bureaucrats going to look at something and
blessing it because no one could smell anything anymore.  He said he was going to press
the County’s counterparts in Fulton County for a joint investigation with EMS and all
affected citizens involved every step of the way so that the citizens could get the truth.  He
said they had never had the truth before now.  He said the citizens were getting a bunch
of reports from Fulton County and they were apparently not willing to shut the plant down.
He said there had to be a full court press and it was not going to be easy.  He said Fayette
County did not have any authority over them but it could press for the truth.  He said
Fayette County would just have to keep pressing and pressing until they did the right thing.
He said the citizens of Fulton County were suffering as much as the Fayette County
citizens.  He said this could just not be ignored.  He said he had lived in Fayette County in
1992 and remembered something about an odor at that time but had not heard anything
about it for many years.  He said he had no idea that citizens in that area were having a
problem with this every now and again.  


Mr.  Hindman said they were having problems periodically.  He said the odor was still being
emitted today and the smell filled his car as he passed the plant.  He said the odor was so
strong that his eyes watered and his noise was burning.  He pointed out that he was
traveling at 50 miles per hour.  


Chairman Dunn said the County’s EMS had certainly given the Board a report and they
had also been working with their counterparts in Fulton County.  He said there was only so
much that Fayette County’s EMS personnel could do.  He said the Fayette County Board
of Commissioners was going to have to elevate it to the governing authority over there.  He
assured the citizens that this would be done.  He said he could not promise anyone what
the results would be or how fast results would come but Fayette County would do
everything it could to get to the bottom of this.  He said there might be some time when
Fayette County would try very hard to try and remove that plant totally from the area.  


Mr. Nelms said EMS personnel would certainly be glad to be part of any committee or any
activity that would support not every having this occur again.







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 14


Commissioner Frady said he certainly appreciated everything that the County’s EMS
personnel had done on this.  He said he did not realize that the County EMS had gone as
far as they had already because he had not received a report on this.  


Chairman Dunn questioned the CDC’s report and the results of that.


Assistant Chief Allen McCullough replied that the air sampling had not revealed anything
that contained anything with an appreciable high number of parts per million.  


Chairman Dunn understood that the CDC’s conclusion was that this was nothing that was
going to threaten the lives of citizens.


Assistant Chief McCullough said that information was based on the CDC’s methodology
but remarked that there were more sensitive ways to determine this.  He said his
department’s report at this point stated that there was a significant health hazard and this
was the information that they had reported to the hospitals.  He said the hospital did treat
people with irritant complaints.


Chairman Dunn asked Captain Nelms to obtain inspection reports for this plant for the last
several years.  


Captain Nelms said the E.P.D. would provide that information to him.  


Chairman Dunn said he had a list of a lot of issues that needed to be looked into.


Captain Nelms remarked that he would be glad to get that information and whatever else
the Board needed.


  


  







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 18


  


  


  


  


Connie Biemiller:  Connie Biemiller said she would like to add another comment to the
odor situation.  She asked if South Fulton did not take action on this as quickly as hoped,
she asked if North Fayette County could be declared a disaster zone due to the lack of
response of South Fulton County.


Commissioner Wells replied that a response to that would have to be predicated upon
finding something that was obviously injurious to health.  She said this would give the
County the authority to do that.  She said there would not be as strong of a suit if it turned
out to be a quality of life issue.  She said at this time she was not sure if anyone could
respond to her questions with enough information that was currently available.  


Chairman Dunn said he could guarantee Ms. Biemiller that the Board would look into this
situation and drop it.  He said Fulton County would have to be pressured because South
Fulton County did not have its own government.


Cathy Strong: Cathy Strong, 370 Kite Lake Road, Fayetteville commented on the effects
of the odor in her area.  She said her normally healthy 14 year old son now had blood in
his urine.  She said her son had been to the doctor but not a hospital.  She said there
would be no record of him being transported or seen at a hospital.  She said she felt there
might be a lot of people out there who might be in the same situation.  She said she had







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 19


taken him to a urologist who had done extensive testing and this had cost them hundreds
of dollars.  She said this had also been very painful to her son.  She said nothing bad had
been found that could be diagnosable. She said with the article that they had read
yesterday in the Fayette Citizen this had been the first time that this had come to her
attention that there was something poisonous that might have been in the air or could have
been in the air for a while.  She said the blood in her son’s urine began around the last
week in June.  She said they were told that they were not exactly sure what it might be but
to watch and let the doctor know if there were any changes.  She said the blood in his urine
continued and that was when they went to the doctor’s office.  She said her biggest
concern was testing of the people who were affected.  She said it would be wonderful if
there was a website that the affected citizens of all the counties could go to that would tell
them what the chemical Propyl Mercaptan was and how long it would stay in a person’s
system.  She questioned how this chemical could be tested in the body.  She said she had
called the Lab Corps that already had blood and urine specimens to be tested for kidney
problems and other types of things.  She said when she informed the urologist today of the
newspaper article and asked him to go ahead and test those specimens that he had for
toxins, Lab Corps said they would not do this.  She said she had been referred to another
lab who told her that they were located in Pennsylvania and did not deal with individuals.
She said it was suggested to her to just go to the Fayette Community Hospital and request
a toxicology test.  She felt it was important that a lot of these individuals who had already
been exposed did the same thing and had some place to go.  


Commissioner Wells also suggested that Ms. Strong also contact the Board of Health.


Ms. Strong asked if she should take her son to the public health department.


Commissioner Wells felt that would be a good place to start so the health department
could refer her and would also have a record of the visit.  She said this would help the
County to facilitate documentation.


Ms. Strong felt it was very important that everybody who could potentially have been
affected needed to have this information as soon as possible and get tested.  She said this
could be something that might potentially harm someone over the long term.  


Commissioner Frady clarified that the people who have spoken tonight on this issue all
lived in Fayette County.


Chairman Dunn asked if anyone was present who lived in South Fulton County.  He noted
that several people stood up who said they were from South Fulton County.







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 20


Earl Hindman: Earl Hindman introduced his daughter and granddaughter and reminded
the Board that as obnoxious as this odor was, it was what could not be seen or what could
not be smelled that people should really be worried about.


Cindy Harris: Cindy Harris introduced her daughter Victoria.  She said her parents keep
Victoria during the day and they lived next door to the plant.  She said Victoria did not go
to the hospital but she did go to the doctor.  She felt there were probably more than six
people who had been to a doctor.  She said Victoria was having chest pain, nausea, nose
bleeds, dizziness, and fever.  She felt there was a lot of people there who were not aware
of what they were dealing with.  She said Victoria was definitely affected by this odor and
they had been up all night for two nights in tears because of the effects of this odor.  She
said now Victoria was scared to go back to her grandparents’ home because she thought
she was going to get sick again.  


Chairman Dunn asked Ms. Harris where she lived.


Ms. Harris said she lived in Fayette County but the grandparents lived in Fulton County.
She said she wanted the Board to know that the effects of this smell were real and this had
happened to her daughter.


Commissioner Wells asked Assistant Chief McCullough if her suggestion that these
citizens start with the Fayette County Health Department the right place to start or would
he suggest something else.


Assistant Chief McCullough replied that it would be a good idea to start with the public
health department. He said they could also reach out to the Department of Human
Resources where there were several layers of specialization.  He said he would be glad
to coordinate anything that was necessary.


Commissioner Wells suggested the newspapers also publish this information so that
anyone experiencing problems would know what direction to take.  


Nell Smith: Nell Smith of Fairburn expressed concern with the odor coming from the
sewage plant in her area.  She said the plant was approximately 4.3 miles from her home.
She said she did not think action should wait until the meeting scheduled for next
Wednesday if Commissioner Bill Edwards could be expedited to take some action.  She
said she had also left a message for the Fairburn City Administrator informing him that just
because this plant was physically located in Fulton County the air was affecting Fairburn.
She said the odor would make you nauseous and have watery eyes.  She said she was
a cancer survivor and she wanted her prognosis to stay that way.  She said if her cancer
were to come back and it was determined to be chemically related, she would go after this







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 21


plant and its officials.  She said something needed to be done and possibly on the State
or Federal level.  


Ben Nelms: Ben Helms of Peachtree City remarked on the odor in the North Fayette
County area.  He said the E.P.D. emergency response team tested the area this afternoon
and took multiple air samples.  He said they test for one half part per million which was the
health effect level.  He said nothing showed up on the test.  He said the human nose could
detect variably 600 parts per trillion.  He said the team could smell the odor but yet it did
not show anything.  He said the material safety data sheet on Propyl Mercaptan said this
was mild to moderately toxic and would result in headaches, nausea, and vomiting were
the normal side effects if there was some type of exposure.  


Mr. Nelms said he would like to note for the record that there were significantly more than
six people in this room who had experienced these symptoms.  He said everyone was
aware that the political boundaries exist and yet this series of incidents had no boundary
and it was affecting the humans.  He said some of these people live in Fayette County and
some live in Fulton County and they were neighbors.  He said Fulton County and Fayette
County would try to determine what needed to be done.  He said it was certainly not a
Fulton County issue.  He remarked that there was a pre-treatment permit through Fulton
County but there was a solid waste permit through E.P.D. which was the State of Georgia.
He said since this plant was transporting interstate hazardous waste, it might very well be
E.P.A.  He said there would be quite a few residents from both Fayette County and Fulton
County at the public meeting next Wednesday.  He said hopefully representatives from
Phillip Services Corp. would be present.  He said in the meantime it was a fact that
approximately 100 people have gotten ill from this smell.  He asked the Commissioners to
go to the North Fayette County and South Fulton County areas and spend a few hours
there and smell the odor.  He said if the Commissioners did this then they would know what
these citizens were talking about.  He said there were certain chemical anomalies that were
occurring in that area.  He said it was definitely heavier than air and moves along the
ground and did not dissipate very easily in sunlight at all.  He said for approximately a
period of one week during that time the winds were blowing North/South and yet every
morning the heavy Propyl Mercaptan smell was traveling due North and this was still
occurring today.  He said two nights ago employees at this plant were washing trees
around this plant.  He said he knew two individuals who lived right next to the plant who
woke up at approximately 1:30 a.m. with their throats closing up.  He said it was now four
weeks after the incident occurred.  He said the vapors of this chemical were moving due
South into Fayette County and due West toward S.R. 74 and due North and East with
winds or no winds and rain or no rain.  He said this was he and the other citizens were
concerned with.  He said this smell seemed to be defying the laws of chemistry and nature.


Chairman Dunn asked Ben Nelms if he lived in that area and he said no but he had spent
a lot of time there.  He said he appreciated Ben’s input.







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 22


Latrice McLondon:  Latrice McLondon, 4080 Castle Way, Fairburn remarked on the odor
coming from the plant and the effects on her family.  She said her home was located just
beyond the tree line of the plant.  She said everyone in her family has had experiences with
this odor.  She said she was also a cancer survivor but had not made her five year mark
yet.  She said she was really afraid right now of what was going to happen.  She said she
has had headaches every single day.  She said she cannot send her children outside and
had to send them to California with their grandmother.  She said her children’s eyes were
constantly red.  She said the smell had invaded every part of her house.  She said she
wakes up at night trying to find a way to sleep so that she would not smell the odor.  She
said she had been spraying perfume on her pillow and putting her face in the pillow so she
can get a minute of fresh air.  


Chairman Dunn asked if there had been any public hearings at all in Fulton County on this
situation.  


Ms. McLondon replied none that she was aware of.  She said she had really just started
getting involved during the last couple of weeks.  She said she had planned to get in
contact with her Fulton County Commissioners.  She said everyone in her household had
been affected including her father and mother who were visiting her from California.  She
said her mother was still having problems with her throat from just being in the house.  She
said a friend had come to visit her and was only in the house for approximately one hour
and the smell was in her car for three days.  


Commissioner Frady said he was glad the citizens from Fulton County had come to this
meeting to give this Commission an idea of what was occurring on the Fulton County side.


Ms. McLondon further remarked that her next door neighbor’s dog had died.


Chairman Dunn thanked everyone for speaking tonight.  He said this was a very frightening
situation.  He said he could not say tonight exactly what route the Board would take to help
solve this problem but the Board would definitely take a route and would not wait a long
time to determine that route.  He felt that anyone who has had dealings with this Board
knows that when it takes an issue on, it would be thoroughly investigated.  He asked for
clarification of the meeting that was going to take place next Wednesday.


Clare Hindman: Clare Hindman, 8295 Spence Road, Fairburn remarked that a meeting
would be held at the Bethany United Methodist Church at 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday, July
19th to discuss the situation of the odor occurring in her area.  She remarked that she lived
within a half mile of this plant.  She replied that the meeting next Wednesday would take
place at the Bethany United Methodist Church at 7:00 p.m.  She said she had gone to
Fulton County Commissioner Bill Edwards’ office today and was told that Mr. Edwards
would attend this meeting.  She said Mr. Edwards was also going to try and have







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 23


representatives of the plant present as well as Representative Virgil Fludd.  She said the
television news reported that a truck at this facility had raised its lid and then closed it back
down and this was the release of the smell.  She said this was not true.  She said the area
residents had been smelling this odor for the last four weeks.  


Chairman Dunn said he had gotten the impression that this plant had processed some of
the debris.


Ms. Hindman said there was a total of sixteen trucks.  


Captain Pete Nelms said that there was an assumption that some of this had been
processed.  


Chairman Dunn said if the trucks were driven away then their whereabouts needed to be
determined and where the debris was processed if it was.  


Ms. Hindman interjected that the trucks had come from Alabama.  


Commissioner Wells asked if anyone had tested the ground in that area.


Captain Nelms replied that he was not aware of any ground or soil sampling that had been
done.  


Commissioner Wells asked Dennis Chase if he was aware of any soil sampling that had
been done.  


Mr. Chase replied no that he had not heard of any.


Commissioner Wells suggested that this be the next step that would be pursued.  


Captain Nelms remarked that this plant was not in Fayette County’s jurisdiction and noted
that it was located in Fulton County.


Commissioner Wells said soil sampling needed to be done so that this information could
be reviewed.  She said she was not sure how stable or unstable the testing of the air would
be.  


Ms. Hindman suggested there should be concern with the water.  She said she passed by
the plant when the employees at the plant were washing off the parking lot and the water
was running off down the side of the road and down into the creek.







Minutes
July 13, 2006
Page 24


Gilbert Bentley: Gilbert Bentley, 179 Milam Road, Fayetteville commented on the area
where the odor was occurring and where soil samples might be taken.  He said if the
Commissioners wanted to test some of the soil in that area, there was an area behind the
plant located at the headwaters of Whitewater Creek.  He said it was no more than a
quarter mile that an individual would be on Fayette County soil.  He said this would allow
someone to get soil and water samples and be in the Fayette County jurisdiction.  He
urged the Board not to use this as campaign rhetoric.  He said he was aware that the
election was this coming Tuesday and two Commissioners were up for re-election.   He
urged the Board to keep this discussion going.


Commissioner Wells suggested Mr. Bentley speak with Captain Pete Nelms so this
sampling could be coordinated.  


Chairman Dunn thanked everyone who spoke tonight and for enlightening the Board on
this situation.  He said he would go to the location and check it out for himself.


Commissioner Wells said she had driven to that area approximately four weeks ago and
smelled the onion smell.  She said at the time she had no idea what it was or where it was
coming from.  


Ms. Hindman said when she had spoken with Fulton County Commissioner Edwards this
morning he had not been to the location to check out the odor.  She said she invited him
to come with her to the area.  She said in order for him to investigation this situation, he
needed to smell it first.


Commissioner Wells said the odor was very pervasive and filled their car as they drove
through the area.


  







Minutes
July 27, 2006
Page 7


   


  
  


  
    


  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
Members of the public are allowed up to five minutes each to address the Board on issues
of concern other than those items which are on this evening’s agenda.


  


Gloria Furr: Tyrone Councilwoman Gloria Furr thanked the Board and everyone who was
involved in getting the onion smell situation resolved.  She said she had a lot of friends who
were sick and she appreciated everything that was being done.  She said on behalf of the
citizens of Tyrone and the Town of Tyrone she would like to say thank you for everyone
who was helping.  







Minutes
July 27, 2006
Page 8


  


Connie Biemiller: Connie Biemiller thanked the Board and staff for everything that had
been done in regard to the Propyl Mercaptan.  She said she had heard from the E.P.D.
today on this issue and the gentleman there was supposed to let her know if things were
going to close up by tomorrow or not.  She remarked if the plant was not closed down on
Friday as hoped, concerned citizens would be protesting on S.R. 74 on Saturday from 9:00
a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  She said the citizens would appreciate the Board’s support during that
time to show solidarity.


Johnny Bell: Johnny Bell, 350 Greenview Circle, Fairburn expressed concern with the
onion smell and a health condition that he had recently been diagnosed with that might
possibly be related to the smell.  He said he did not understand how a company was
allowed to have toxic fumes going into the air and nobody be aware of it.  He said he and
his neighbors would appreciate some help.  


Commissioner Wells interjected that citizens could speak with Chief Jack Krakeel who was
present here tonight and let him know about any potential health problems.  She said Chief
Krakeel and his staff would be gathering this information.  


STAFF REPORTS:
CHIEF JACK KRAKEEL: Chief Jack Krakeel updated the Board on the onion smell
situation.  He remarked that the incident that occurred some time ago continued to linger.
He said at the Board of Commissioners’ meeting two weeks ago, the Board instructed staff
to develop an action plan and present this to the Board for review.  He said he was present
tonight to update the Board on the activities that had occurred over the course of the last
two weeks.  He said significant progress had been made over the course of the last two
weeks.  He said individuals had engaged in a number of meetings with citizens of Fayette
County and Fulton County as well as with Fulton County officials and other State officials.
He said a healthcare questionnaire form had been developed to begin tracking the number
of citizens in this community who had complained of some type of illness that was believed
at this juncture to be associated with this issue.  He said 122 health surveys had been
returned to his office as of this evening.  He said those surveys continued to be available
from his staff and also from the County’s website in both English and Spanish.  He said an
impact zone had been plotted in the community based on the surveys that had been
received and the number of complaints that had been received.  He said this incident
propagated a significant area in North Fayette County in terms of the odor itself.  He said
there were also areas outside of the affected area such as the Administrative Complex
area where there was some minor indication of an occurrence.  







Minutes
July 27, 2006
Page 9


Chief Krakeel said that last night they had met at Bethany United Methodist Church again
and presented information to the citizens that had been obtained during the last week.  He
said he and his staff had been working aggressively trying to identify if this was the first
known occurrence of a situation such as this.  He said he was able to obtain an
epidemiological report that was done by the California Department of Public Health in 1990
as a result of an incident similar to this.  He said his office had copies of those reports and
would make copies of those reports available to the public.  He said he had also continued
to work with the various agencies and had request these agencies per the previous action
plan to continue to monitor the situation.  He said the Environmental Protection Division
conducted a multi-media site investigation this week of the PSE facility which resulted in
a review by experts of all facets of this plant.  He said results of that investigation would be
forthcoming some time in the next week to fourteen days.  He said the District Health
Office and the State Health Department were being requested to immediately begin an
epidemiology investigation of this incident.  He stated that Dr. Michael Strain who was the
Chairman of the Fayette County Board of Health had concurred with this recommendation
and had written a letter to Dr. Michael Brackett who was the District Four Medical Director.
A copy of the letter, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  He said a conference call scheduled for tomorrow morning at 9:00
a.m. with Dr. Brackett to pursue the initiation of an epidemiological study and investigation
of this incident in North Fayette County.  


Chief Krakeel further remarked that water sampling would also be ongoing of the
Whitewater Creek area for volatile organic compounds.  He said Fayette County Water
System Manager Tony Parrott along with the City of Fayetteville would be sharing some
costs on some additional water sampling of the Whitewater Creek area for these
compounds.  He said they hoped that this would be concluded in the next couple of weeks.
He felt at this juncture with all of the activities that had been undertaken during the past
three weeks, maximum saturation was close to being reached as far as Fayette County
was concerned.  He said staff definitely wanted to see an epidemiological investigation
initiated because it was believed that ultimately not only would it provide answers to this
situation but it would provide the base line for a long term analysis.  He said he believed
that was necessary in this particular case. 


Chief Krakeel said his particular request to the Board was that the Commission’s
counterparts on the Fulton County Commission and all of the local agencies be kept up to
date regarding all of these findings and requests since this plant was in Fulton County’s
jurisdiction and also the State agencies who have a role in this.  He said staff had identified
a number of steps that were believed to be appropriate at this juncture.  He said (1) while
this incident had caused serious concern for the community, it had caused further concern
from his perspective and the emergency management perspective of the integrity of the
Whitewater Creek basin.  He said while there was some capture capability on site, he was
concerned that any future potential spills that may occur at this facility could have a
significant negative impact on the County’s water source with one of the primary water







Minutes
July 27, 2006
Page 10


sources being Whitewater Creek.  He said (2) he would like to see and ensure that if this
facility remained open that an appropriate containment system was constructed there to
absolutely ensure no spill would have a detrimental affect on the community.  He said (3)
staff had requested that the E.P.D. perform a  continuous air monitoring system using a
more sophisticated methodology than what was previously utilized post July 4th weekend
be done for a period of thirty days.  He said staff continued to receive complaints from
citizens about the odor in this area and he felt that this more intensive capability would give
the County better data than what it was able to obtain with the previous air sampling
capability.  He felt that the ultimate resolution to this issue would be a closure of the facility
and it would be in the best interest of this community and its citizens for that to occur. He
said if this facility was allowed to function as it had, that this facility be prohibited from
receiving any material that had the potential for creating this kind of environmental impact.
He expressed concern with the plant receiving any future material that might have the
potential for creating this kind of environmental impact.  He felt there should be pretesting
done on any product coming into the facility to eliminate the potential for an accidental
vapor release which could create a significant odor problem for surrounding communities.
He said if this facility continued to operate, that a plan be developed by not only the facility
but with the Fayette County and Fulton County communities so that Emergency Services
would be immediately notified of any situation that had the potential to affect the
community so that appropriate action could be initiated before it reached a threshold level
such as it did in this particular situation.  He said at this point these were the activities that
had been undertaken.  He said these had been numerous, intensive and they were
ongoing at this time.  He said he would be glad to answer any questions.  


Commissioner Wells said she would like to commend Chief Krakeel and all of his staff who
had been so vigilant in this situation.  She said if it had not been for Fayette County it would
probably have been several days longer before the location of the actual problem was
determined.  She said her concern was with the effects of this odor and the time frame it
would take to get answers for the affected citizens.  She said all of the elaborate plans in
the world could be in place and everyone might be so busy studying the issue that things
continue without any resolution for a long period of time.  


Chairman Dunn remarked that many citizens had spoken at the last Commissioners’
meeting and opened everybody’s eyes to this situation.  He said unfortunately Fayette
County was not the jurisdiction that had control over this area but the County was not going
to be deterred in trying to get to the bottom of this situation.  He said the County had a lot
of things that it could do and had been doing but it would also be doing some additional
things.  He said if this plant was located in Fayette County, the situation would have been
acted upon very rapidly.                                                                                         


Chairman Dunn further remarked that Chief Krakeel was requesting this Board to contact
its counterparts in Fulton County and this would be done.  He said so far everyone who







Minutes
July 27, 2006
Page 11


had been involved had responded in a positive way once the crisis seemed to get out of
hand.  He said the citizens had to activate whatever happened in that area as a result of
this odor.  He said it had been a problem jurisdictionally that the plant itself was not located
in Fayette County.  He said this Board could not dictate to people in Fulton County as to
what needed to be done.  He remarked that Fayette County had the best emergency
management people in the State as well as the best medical services.  He said there was
a lot of expertise here in Fayette County and the ability to do things on its own but this plant
was operating in a different jurisdiction.  He said Fulton County Commissioner Edwards
had asked for an immediate shut down of this plant until the problem could be determined.
He said he would be speaking personally with Fulton County Chairperson Karen Handel
and asking that Fulton County shut down this plant permanently.  He said the citizens
should not have to go through periods with horrible smells coming from this facility every
once and a while and have something this disastrous happen was ridiculous.  He said an
incident equal to this one occurred ten years ago and it smelled like sewerage.  He said
in the meantime there had been one or two days of obnoxious odors that dissipated over
time.  He said this time it was something much worse.  He said it had been a month since
this smell started and it still had not dissipated completely.  He said no one knew exactly
what the odor was but this Board did not want to have the people in Fayette County nor the
people in Fulton County who live within residential areas surrounding this plant to have to
put up with this.  He said regardless of what was found in this incident, this plant should be
closed.  


Chairman Dunn further remarked that this plant was also very close to Whitewater Creek
and Fayette County citizens get a substantial amount of drinking water out of Whitewater
Creek.  He said Fayette County did not want to have to do extraordinary measures now to
figure out every day whether or not this plant was polluting Fayette County’s drinking water.
He said Fayette County would still have to purify the water but it sure did not want to purify
the water from things that it did not know anything about. He said this Board was
unanimous in feeling that this plant must be closed and it needed to determine what
happened there.  He said in addition to Fayette County asking them to do this, Fayette
County would also offer its assistance and staff.  He said it was important for Fayette
County staff to be working with the Fulton County staff so that Fayette would know exactly
what was found and exactly what the impact of this was.  He felt with the two governments
working on this situation together rather than just having one reporting to the other, the
community would be better off in the future.  He said Fayette County would pursue this and
he supported 100% what the citizens were going to do this weekend.  He said by bringing
attention to the problem would help them to make some good decisions.  He thanked all
of the citizens who had come to the Commissioners’ meeting last week and also tonight
to tell the Board just how bad this situation was.  He said there was no way that this Board
could have understood that because none of the Board members lived close to this.  He
said what these citizens had been going through was unbelievable and this Board was
going to do whatever it could to resolve it.  He said he had spoken to Carolyn Couch
yesterday who was the Executive Director of the Georgia Department of Natural Resources







Minutes
July 27, 2006
Page 12


and she was very much interested in this situation.  He said the Atlanta Regional
Commission would be more and more interested in this particularly if appropriate
responses were not received from the region.  He assured everyone that this issue would
not be dropped just because a letter was being sent out.


Commissioner Frady said he felt this was an excellent letter and all bases had been
covered.  He said he wished everyone could have attended the recent meeting at Bethany
United Methodist Church.  He said the emotion up there was very high and he sure hoped
that something could be done to help those citizens.  


  


  


  


  





		Commissioners- Biemiller Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Biemiller Backup

		Commissioners- PSC Request for Letter Backup.pdf

		Commissioners- Biemiller Backup-2

		Commissinoers- Biemiller Backup-3












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Approval of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2012-05 for the purpose of discontinuing Fayette County's role in receiving customer 


complaints from subscribers of Comcast Cable.


Fayette County has historically provided franchise licenses to various cable television and other services throughout the years.  The 


latest holder of a Fayette County franchise license is Comcast Cable. 


 


In 2007, the Georgia General Assembly passed the Consumer Choice for Television Act, and that act provided that cable television and 


other video service providers could obtain state franchises to operate anywhere in the State of Georgia under certain conditions.  This 


also, effectively, removed Fayette County from issuing or renewing franchise licences for these types of services.  This act became 


effective in January 2012. 


 


Comcast Cable continues to print the County's name and address on its bills, leading many of their customers to believe that customer 


service questions, bill complaints, equipment drop-off capability, and other related issues are handled by County staff.  This is an 


unnecessary cause of frustration for both the citizens of Fayette County and its staff 


 


Pursuant to the change in State law, staff is requesting that a Resolution be sent to Comcast Cable formally requesting that Fayette 


County be removed from the company's customer service operations, and to remove the County's contact information from all future bills.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2012-05 for the purpose of discontinuing Fayette County's role in receiving customer 


complaints from subscribers of Comcast Cable.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012







State of Georgia; 


County of Fayette 


 


Resolution No. 2012 - 05 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA, FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCONTINUING FAYETTE COUNTY’S ROLE IN 


RECEIVING CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS FROM SUBSCRIBERS OF COMCAST CABLE 


TELEVISION AND REQUESTING THAT COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS 


CORPORATION REMOVE CONTACT INFORMATION OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


FROM THE MONTHLY BILLINGS OF SUBSCRIBERS OF COMCAST CABLE IN 


FAYETTE COUNTY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 36 OF THE OFFICIAL CODE OF 


GEORGIA, SECTION 36-76-7(2). 


 


Whereas, cable television and other services of Comcast Cable Communications Corporation are 


available to subscribers within Fayette County; and 


Whereas, for many years Comcast held a franchise from Fayette County which allowed Comcast to 


operate inside Fayette County but which also resulted in the County Government’s obligation to 


participate in the disposition of customer complaints and inquires from Comcast subscribers; and 


Whereas, in 2007, the Georgia General Assembly passed legislation known as the Consumer Choice for 


Television Act that provided cable television and other video service providers to obtain state franchises to 


operate anywhere in the State of Georgia under certain conditions; and 


Whereas, Comcast Cable Communications now holds a state franchise and is no longer required to obtain 


franchises from individual cities and counties throughout Georgia, including Fayette County; and 


Whereas, In 2008, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County adopted Resolution No. 2008-05 which 


continued the collection of franchise fees from Comcast and any other cable or video provider at a rate of 


5% of annual gross revenues generated by providing services within the unincorporated areas of Fayette 


County; and 


Whereas, because Fayette County is no longer required to participate in the disposition of customer 


service issues involving Comcast Cable and its subscribers; 


BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, the 


governing authority of said Fayette County, that Comcast Cable Communications Corporation be notified 


that Fayette County is to be removed from any process involving the receiving and handling of customer 


complaints, billing issues and other complaints from subscribers of its services within Fayette County; and 


further, that all contact information for the Fayette County government is to be removed from the bills to 


subscribers of its services in said Fayette County, in accordance with the Official Code of Georgia Title 


36-76-7(2). 


 SO RESOLVED and effective this 8th day of March, 2012, by the 


 


        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 Attest:      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 ______________________________   ______________________________ 


 Clerk/Deputy Clerk     Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 





		Commissioners- Comcast Resolution Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Comcast Resolution Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Consideration of reappointment of Darryl Hicks to Post 4 of the Fayette County Recreation Commission to a four-year term that will 


commence on April 1, 2012 and will expire on March 31, 2016.


The Recreation Commission consists of five members with residency requirements for each seat consistent with the posts of County 


Commissioners.  Commissioner McCarty's at-large Post 4 corresponds with this seat on the Recreation Commission.  Darryl Hicks is 


willing to continue to serve if reappointed to this seat on the Recreation Commission.  He has served as the Vice-Chairman of the Board 


and has been a reliable member of the Recreation Commission since he was first appointed on March 23, 2009. 


 


There have been no changes in the process for making appointments, thus staff has processed this issue in accordance with established 


policy.


Vote to reappoint Darryl Hicks to the Post 4 seat on the Fayette County Recreation Commission for a four-year term that will commence 


on April 1, 2012 and will expire on March 31, 2016.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Toni Jo Howard / Tony Parrott


Consideration of a resolution to provide for the issuance of Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A, and Fayette 
County, Georgia Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B, and for other related purposes.


The Series 2012A Bonds are to be issued in the approximate amount of $9 million for the purpose of financing upgrades to the County's 
two water treatment plants.  The upgrades primarily consist of acquiring and installing the MIEX treatment technology at the County's  two 
water treatment plants. 
 
The Series 2012B Bonds are to be issued in the approximate amount of $15.8 million for the purpose of refunding a portion of the Fayette 
County Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 (the "Series 2002 Bonds"), now outstanding in the $15.445 million, in order to achieve debt 
service savings.  The estimated amount of present value savings is approximately $1.5 million. 
 
The resolution will authorize the Chairman to execute a bond purchase agreement with Merchant Capital, L.L.C., the underwriter of the 
bonds, and to take all further actions to close the bond issue.


Approval of a resolution to provide for the issuance of Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A, and Fayette 
County, Georgia Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B, and for other related purposes.


Not Applicable.


Yes


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 22, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Human Resources County Administrator Jack Krakeel


Consideration of staff's request for authorization to engage the Benefits Law Group for legal work requirements associated with the 


implementation of the Early Retirement Plan, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Engagement Letter.


Pursuant to the Board's direction during the 2012 Retreat, staff has been in communications with the County's Pension Plan 


Administrator - GebCorp.  Recognizing that there will be significant legal work that will need to be accomplished with respect to both 


employer and employee, the County Administrator recommends that the Board of Commissioners engage the legal firm that represents 


the County's Plan Administrator in order to proceed with the production of documents required for an Early Retirement Plan.  These 


documents include plan amendments, individualized disclosure documents, election forms, and waivers to employees.   


 


Please see attached documentation.


Authorization of the County Administrator's request to engage the Benefits Law group for legal work requirements associated with the 


implementation of the Early Retirement Plan, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Engagement Letter.


The estimated cost is approximately $10,000 to $12,000.


Yes Saturday, March 10, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, March 22, 2012

















		Human Resources- Benefits Law Group Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Benefits Law Group Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Human Resources Jack Krakeel


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2012-08 modifying the County's Defined Benefit Retirement Plan to accommodate 


the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program; and authorization for the Chairman to sign any  associated agreements contingent 


upon review of the County Attorney.


Pursuant to the Board's direction during the 2012 Retreat, staff has been in communication with the County's Pension Plan Administrator, 


GebCorp.  Recognizing that there will be significant work to be accomplished with respect to both employer and employee, including an 


amendment to the County's current Retirement Plan that establishes the terms of the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program, staff 


respectfully requests adoption of Resolution No. 2012-08 which will begin the process of setting up the program. 


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2012-08 modifying the County's Defined Benefit Retirement Plan to accommodate 


the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program; and authorization for the Chairman to sign any  associated agreements contingent 


upon review of the County Attorney.


Not Applicable.


Yes March 10, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 22, 2012







 


State of Georgia; 


County of Fayette 


 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 2012 – 08 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA TO AUTHORIZE  AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County, Georgia (the “Employer”) maintains the Association County Commissioners 


of Georgia (ACCG) Defined Benefit Plan for Fayette County Employees (the “Plan”) for the benefit of its 


eligible employees; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Employer adopted the Plan through the Adoption Agreement most recently effective July 


1, 2009; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Employer desires to adopt an Early Retirement Incentive Program (the “Program”) for 


certain Plan Participants who have, as of June 30, 2012, attained a minimum age of fifty- five (55) years 


and have completed at least twenty (20) years of Vesting Service under the Plan (“Eligible Participants”), 


which will allow such Eligible Participants the opportunity to make a one-time election to currently retire 


from employment with additional benefits; and 
 


WHEREAS, it has been determined that forty-four (44) Employees shall be Eligible Participants; and 
 


WHEREAS,  the  estimated  average  increased  Plan  liability  for  each  Eligible  Participant  is $86,864; 


and 
 


WHEREAS, the actual increased Plan liability shall be determined upon completion of the Program 


and the final number of Eligible Participants accepting the Program; and 
 


WHEREAS, such additional Plan liability shall be immediately offset in full by an additional Employer 


contribution from the Employer’s unassigned fund balance;  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, THE EMPLOYER HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: IT IS 


RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia (the “Commissioners”) 


hereby approves an Early Retirement Incentive Program as follows: 
 


a. Eligible Participants for the Early Retirement Incentive Program are Employees who are 


actively employed by the County on June 30, 2012, have attained a minimum age of fifty-five 


(55) and have completed at least twenty (20) years of Vesting Service under the Plan on or 


before June 30, 2012. 
 


b.   Eligible Participants shall be provided with a one-time opportunity to elect to currently retire 


with the following additional benefits under the Plans: 
 


i.   an Unreduced Early Retirement Pension; and 
 


ii.   an additional five (5) years of Credited Service; and 
 


iii.  a refund of Participant Contributions plus interest of amounts paid by Eligible Participant 


to purchase Past Service Credit for years of Credited Service accumulated by the Eligible 


Participant, in excess of thirty (30) years. 
 


c. Eligible Participants who elect to currently retire under the Program shall be provided the 


following additional benefits: 


 


 
 







i.   Post-retirement health insurance benefit (employee only)  until age 65.  


 


d.   Eligible Participants must retire under the Program on or before July 1, 2012. 


e. Elections  under  the  Program  must  be  completely  voluntary  on  the  part  of  the  Eligible 


Participant. 


 


f. The Eligible Participant’s election period shall not be less than forty-five (45) days with an 


additional 7 - day revocation period. 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Herbert E. Frady, Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of 


Fayette County, Georgia, is authorized by the County to execute all documents necessary to implement the 


Early Retirement Incentive Program, including any amendments to the Plan or the Adoption Agreement, and 


to take all further actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of the foregoing resolution. 


   


IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that a true copy of this resolution be recorded in the County’s 


records as of this date. 


 


 


SO RESOLVED, this 22nd day of March, 2012, by the  


 


  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


  FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


                         (Seal) 


  ____________________________ 


  Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


Attest: 


 


________________________________ 


Clerk 


 





		Human Resources- Resolution 2...ement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Resolution 2012-08 Early Retirement Backup



